

STUDENTS, FAMILIES, & CAREGIVERS HANDBOOK 2025-2026 SCHOOL YEAR

Malden Public Schools Leadership

School Committee Members

Mayor Gary Christenson, Chairperson
Michael Drummey, Ward 1
Robert McCarthy, Ward 2

Jennifer Spadafora, Vice Chair, Ward 3

Dawn Macklin, Ward 4

Flizabeth Hortie, Ward 5

Joseph Gray, Ward 6

Keith Bernard, Ward 7

Sharyn Rose-Zeiberg, Ward 8

District Leaders

Dr. Timothy Sippel, Superintendent of Schools

Komal Bhasin, Assistant Superintendent

Pamela MacDonald, Assistant Superintendent

Dr. Sarah McLaughlin, Assistant Superintendent **Toni Mertz**, Director of Finance and Operations

School Leaders

Tamara Lawrence, ELC Principal
Dr. Kari-ann Murphy, Beebe Principal
Dr. Matthew Stahl, Ferryway Principal
Adam Weldai, Forestdale Principal

Rafael Garcia, Linden Principal
Van Huynh, Salemwood Principal
Christopher Mastrangelo, MHS Principal

Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity

In compliance with federal and state law, it is the policy of the Malden Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, disability, age, genetic information, active military/veteran status, marital status, familial status, pregnancy, or pregnancy-related condition, homelessness, ancestry, ethnic background, national origin, or any other category protected by state or federal law. in its educational programs, activities or employment policies.

Every student will be given equal opportunity in school admission, admissions to courses, course content, support services, and extracurricular and athletic activities.

Inquiries regarding the compliance with these policies may be made directly to the principals of each school, the superintendent's office, or the US Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights, 617-289-0111, www.ed.gov/ocr.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LETTER FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT	6
PURPOSE OF THE HANDBOOK	6
COMMUNICATION	7
School & Parent/Caregiver Communications	7
Back-to-School Night	7
Caregiver/Educator Conferences	7
ParentSquare Communications Platform	7
Aspen Training for Parents/Caregivers	7
Emergency Contact	8
Change of Address and Contact Information	8
Student Custody	8
Social Media	8
School Cancellations	8
TITLE I SCHOOL-CAREGIVER-STUDENT COMPACT	9
Malden Public Schools' Involvement	9
Family's Involvement	9
Student's Involvement	10
DISTRICT-WIDE ATTENDANCE POLICY	10
Supervisor of Attendance	10
Truancy	10
Child Requiring Assistance (CRA)	10
Absences & Excused Absences	11
How Parents/Caregivers Can Help	11
Excused Absences Policy	12
Unexcused Absences Policy	12
Classroom Daily Attendance Records	12
Did Not Report to School (DNR)	12
Cutting Class/Skipping Class	13
Vacations	13
Student Absence Notification Program	13
Home & Hospital Tutoring	13
MANDATORY REPORTING	14
Mandated Reporting of Neglect and Abuse	14
ASSESSMENTS	14
District Assessments Overview SY 2025-2026	14
Students educated with Massachusetts public funds are required by federal laws and the Massachusetts Education Reform Law, state law M. G. L. Chapter 69, section 1I, to participate testing, including the MCAS and ACCESS exams. Some students at Malden also participate in the PSAT/NMSQT, SAT, and AP exams. At intervals, random sampling students, as determined by the US Department of Education, in the district take the natice exam (National Assessment of Educational Progress)	ticipate in High School ng of onal NAEP
SCHOOL VISITATION GUIDELINES	
SOLIOGE VISITATION GOIDEENVESSIONIstavantaustaustaustaustaustaustaustaustaustaus	13

Signing-in/out	15
Parking	15
Classroom Visits	15
Students' Privacy	15
Observations for Special Education Programs (Current or Proposed)	16
Grade 5 & MIDDLE SCHOOL HONORS PATHWAY	17
MIDDLE SCHOOL HONORS PATHWAY	17
HEALTH INFORMATION	18
Immunization Requirements/ Medical Records	18
Physical Examination Requirements	18
Immunization/Physical Requirements K-12 for Malden Public Schools	19
SUPPORTS FOR PROMOTING ACADEMIC SUCCESS	23
Special Education	23
504 Accommodation Plans	24
SUBSTANCE ABUSE & INTERVENTION	26
District-Wide Policy	26
Substance Misuse Response	26
Voluntary Self-Disclosure Response	26
Student Athletes	26
Mandated Reporting of Abuse	27
Incident Report	27
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES	27
Guidance Counselors / Adjustment Counselors	27
SCHOOL SAFETY PLANS	28
Emergency & Evacuation Procedures	28
Fire Drill Procedures	29
Fire Alarms	29
Student Monitoring and Safety Supervision:	29
LUNCH INFORMATION	30
STUDENT DRESS CODE	30
HOMEWORK POLICY	31
PROMOTION REQUIREMENTS	32
Elementary School: Promotion and Retention Policy	32
Elementary School: Summary Of Promotion & Homework Requirements Per Grade Level Span	33
Middle School: Summary of Promotion Requirements	34
High School Promotion	35
GRADING	35
Progress Reports & Report Cards	35
National Honor Society	36
Class Rank/Grade Point Average	36
PERSONAL ITEMS & PROHIBITED ARTIFACTS	37
Personal Items	37
Bicycles, Roller Blades, Skateboards & Scooters	37
Prohibited Items	37
Cell Phone Policy	38
Student Lockers	39

Vandalism Policy	40
Hazing	40
Bullying Prevention and Intervention	41
Student Record Regulations & FERPA	42
VISION OF A GRADUATE	45
2025-26 SCHOOL CALENDAR	46
DRAFT 2025-26 REPORT CARD SCHEDULE	47
MPS Elementary Grading System: K-8	48
Student Transportation	49
MBTA Student "Charlie Card"	49
Pick-up/Drop-off Procedures	49
Student ID Policy	49
Non-Discrimination and Complaint Policies	49
Title IX Notice & Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures	53
HOMELESS STUDENTS	57
Enrollment Rights & Services	57
Educational Opportunities for Military Children	60
CODE OF CONDUCT	62
Academic, Social, & Civic Expectations	62
Rationale for the Code of Conduct	62
Our Code of Conduct Philosophy	63
Rights & Responsibilities	64
Approaches to Safe & Supportive Schools	68
Student Athletes	76
Infractions, Codes, Definitions / Criteria are directly from the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE)	
PARENT/ LEGAL GUARDIAN FIELD TRIP AUTHORIZATION	
TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE AGREEMENT	
TEST TO ECO OT A COLE TABLE COLE A COLE TEST TEST TEST TEST TEST TEST TEST TE	, ,

LETTER FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT

Dear Students, Educators, Staff, Families & Caregivers:

I am pleased to present the Malden Public Schools Student Handbook for the 2025-2026 school year. This handbook reflects our core values: include and collaborate, embrace growth, and do right by all kids.

In this handbook you will be able to find information about district-wide policies, student support service offerings, established procedures for the district and more.

I am thankful to the Malden Public Schools community for your continued support of our students. I wish each of you a fantastic 2025-2026 school year!



Go Malden!

Timothy Sippel, Ed.L.D.Superintendent of Schools

PURPOSE OF THE HANDBOOK

To ensure all parents/caregivers /guardians and students are informed of important district policies, we request that all students and their parents/caregivers /guardians sign and return the Student and Parents/Caregiver Consent and Release Form located on the last page of this Handbook.

Parents/caregivers/guardians and students will be apprised of any significant changes to School Committee policy or district procedures that take place after this Handbook's publication.

Our goal is to design and provide the most supportive and safe educational setting that will lead to the best possible outcomes for all students. With this in mind, it is our policy to recognize, preserve, and protect the individual rights of all students through the enforcement of policies, rules, and regulations outlined in this Handbook.

The Malden Code of Conduct includes:

- Rights and Responsibilities
- Approaches to Promote Safe and Supportive Schools
- Student Conduct
- Student Due Process Rights
- Discipline for Students with Disabilities

COMMUNICATION

School & Parent/Caregiver Communications

Malden Public Schools' goal is to provide effective communications to parents, caregivers, and families at the district and school level.

Back-to-School Night

At the beginning of the year, each school will host a Back to School Night/Open house. On this night, teachers will use the opportunity to meet the parents/caregivers and their studentren and give them a preview of the classroom, their goals for the class and for your student. They'll share information about their teaching style and methodology, how they grade and the requirements for a good grade. This is a great opportunity for parents/caregivers to engage and begin lines of communication with teachers. Schools will communicate the timing of this night directly to parents/caregivers.

Caregiver/Educator Conferences

Caregiver/Educator conferences provide an opportunity for parents/caregivers to have one-to-one meetings with their student's teachers. During this time, parents/caregivers are able to discuss report cards, ask questions regarding their student's academic progress etc. There are two scheduled parent/caregivers visitations during the school year.

The dates and times of the parent/caregivers visitations will be determined by each school's administration.

ParentSquare Communications Platform

Malden Public Schools uses ParentSquare as our communications platform. The ParentSquare system allows the Superintendent and Principals to send information that is time sensitive and relevant to the safety and education of students in our schools. Teachers may also use the system to provide information on day-to-day classroom happenings and important updates.

During the school year, parents/caregivers will receive email, text, and phone messages from the school, from the district, and from their student's teacher about snow days, conferences, academic events, and other updates and reminders through ParentSquare. At registration, all caregivers are asked to provide a cell phone number and email address for use in the platform. If your phone number or email address changes, please let your student's school office know of the change in a timely manner. Parents can log-in to ParentSquare to get full access to all of its features or simply receive messages to their phones.

Aspen Training for Parents/Caregivers

Aspen is our Student Information System (SIS) where important contact, health, and academic information is stored. All parents/caregivers receive an Aspen account at the time of registration. It is important for parents/caregivers to have access to their Aspen account to update their student's information and access their student's academic and attendance reports. If you do not have access to your Aspen account or are missing student's in your Aspen account, please contact the school's administrative assistants for help.

Emergency Contact

This is critical information that must be updated in case of an emergency.

Information Changes

Please contact the schools' administrative assistants to update all contact information for a student. Malden Public Schools cannot provide or release students to any individual who is not registered in ASPEN as a contact or emergency contact.

Change of Address and Contact Information

Any time a student changes their address, the school office should be notified immediately. The parent/caregivers must provide the school with a utility bill/lease etc. which shows the parent/caregivers's name and current address. Any change in contact information, including telephone numbers, should be submitted to the office immediately. If a student is moving from Malden, the parent/caregivers must come to the school office to sign transfer documents.

Student Custody

If you have legal custody matters and/or current restraining orders involving your student through a court order, it is important that the school administration has a copy of this document.

Please do not assume that school employees know about custody issues. Be sure that the school knows if any other parent, caregiver, or adult is not allowed to pick up your student from school. If at any time during the year, a court order is changed or issued, please notify the Principal.

Social Media

To stay up to date on happenings in the Malden Public Schools, you can follow our $\underline{\text{Facebook}}$, $\underline{\text{Instagram}}$, or $\underline{\text{X}}$ accounts and visit our district website at $\underline{\text{maldenps.org}}$.

School Cancellations

Malden Public Schools believes that our students are best served academically and socially by being in school. However, our top priority is always the safety of our students and staff. When winter storms are forecast, the district leadership closely monitors conditions and consults with Malden City Hall and the Malden Department of Public Works to determine whether canceling school is necessary to ensure everyone's safety.

Closing school is a last resort, but when a decision is made to cancel school, the district will make an official announcement and circulate it as widely as possible. Families, students and staff should always assume that school will be open unless they receive a message from the Mayor and/or the Superintendent announcing the closing of school. Please remember, any day that is cancelled due to inclement weather has to be made up as an additional school day at the end of the school year in June.

TITLE I SCHOOL-CAREGIVER-STUDENT COMPACT

The School-Caregiver-Student Compact will be jointly developed with district representatives and family members. The compact outlines how parents, the entire district staff, and students will share in the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the school and the parents will build and develop partnerships to help children achieve the State's high standards (ESSA, Section 1116(d)).

Malden Public Schools' Involvement

The school district understands the importance of the school experience to every student and their role as educators and models. Therefore, the district agrees to carry out the following responsibilities to the best of its ability:

- Provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in an affirming and engaging learning environment that enables all students to meet the challenging State academic standards.
- Address the importance of communication between teachers and caregivers on an ongoing basis through, at a minimum:
- Parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at least annually, during which the compact shall be discussed as the compact relates to the individual child's achievement;
- Frequent reports to caregivers on their child's progress;
- Reasonable access to staff for meetings on student progress;
- Ensuring regular two-way, meaningful communication between family members and school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language that family members can understand (ESSA, Section 1116(d)(1-2)).
- Treat each child with dignity and respect.
- Strive to address the individual needs of the student.
- Acknowledge that caregivers are vital to the success of children and school.
- Provide a safe, positive, and meaningful learning environment.
- Assure every student has access to quality teachers, curriculum, and learning experiences.
- Assure that the school staff communicates clear expectations for performance to both students and caregivers.

Family's Involvement

The family understands that participation in their student's education will help their achievement and attitude. Therefore, the family will continue to carry out the following responsibilities to the best of their ability:

- Volunteer with the student's class or school when possible according to the district's policy and public health guidance;
- Supporting their child's learning (reading together/homework help/routines);
- Participating, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the education of their child and positive use of extracurricular time;
- Create a home atmosphere that supports learning and literacy development;
- Send the student to school on time and well-rested on a regular basis;
- Attend school functions (school site council meetings/Title I Nights/Workshops) and caregiver-teacher conferences;
- Encourage their child to show respect for all members of the school community and school property;

 Review all school communications (folders/ClassDojo/website) and respond promptly when necessary.

Student's Involvement

The student realizes education is important. They are the ones responsible for their own success. Therefore, they agree to carry out the following responsibilities to the best of their ability:

- Get to school on time every day.
- Develop a positive attitude toward school and extend best effort at all times.
- Be responsible for completing classwork/homework on time.
- Be cooperative to both classmates and teachers and ask for help when needed.
- Be respectful to all school members and to school property.

DISTRICT-WIDE ATTENDANCE POLICY

The Malden Public Schools seeks to promote excellent school attendance. The Massachusetts General Laws state that parents/caregivers are responsible for their student's attendance (M.G.L. C 76§2, C 76§4), and that absences may not exceed 7 full-day session or 14 half-day sessions in any 6 month period (M.G.L. C 76§1). The school system employs an attendance officer to support parents/caregivers and encourage regular compliance with the state statute. Parents/caregivers and other authorized concerned individuals may contact their school Principal, who will contact the attendance officer regarding school attendance issues.

Supervisor of Attendance

The Malden Public Schools Supervisor of Attendance coordinates with school-based staff to investigate attendance problems primarily outside the school environment. They work in the community, visit homes, and counsel students and their parents/caregivers. When necessary, the Supervisors of Attendance file and represent chronic cases in the City of Malden Juvenile Court.

Supervisor of Attendance has regular meetings with attendance school teams to support students and caregivers to ensure that students are attending school.

Truancy

Under Massachusetts General Laws Per G.L. c. 119, § 21, a Child Requiring Assistance (CRA) is a student aged 6-18 who is, in part, habitually truant; meaning the student is 'willfully' failing to attend school for more than eight (8) school days in a quarter without a lawful and reasonable excuse from attendance. Students must attend school. Truancy is defined as any unexcused absence from school. Administrators will notify parents/caregivers and/or initiate court involvement for students habitually late or absent.

Child Requiring Assistance (CRA)

A Child Requiring Assistance case is where parents/caregivers, or school officials ask the court to help supervise a student. Supervisor of Attendance (SOA), working with school staff, makes decisions on future action based on investigative findings, prior attendance patterns, and correspondence with parents/caregivers and the school. One option is court referral. The decision to file a CRA is made by the SOA based on the finding and results only after exhausting all other possible courses of action. The CRA will only be filed if the student has accumulated 8 or more unexcused absences in a single quarter and the school has documented intervention steps in ASPEN.

Absences & Excused Absences

Regular and punctual school attendance is essential for success in school. We recognize that parents/caregivers of students attending our schools have special rights as well as responsibilities, one of which is to ensure that their students attend school regularly, in accordance with state law. Students who have 10 or more consecutive absences may be unenrolled from the Malden Public School. In these instances the school will contact the caregiver to support attendance concerns prior to discharging the students from the district.

All students must be present in school for at least 3.5 hours in order for them to be counted as present.

Therefore, students may receive excused absences from school attendance only for the following reasons:

- Illness, injury or quarantine that prevents the student from attending school upon receipt of doctor's note.
- Bereavement or serious illness in the parents/caregivers.
- Inclement weather is to endanger the health of the student.
- Observance of major religious holidays.
- A significant personal or parents/caregivers crisis that prevents the student from attending school as approved by school admin.
- Court appearances: Students must present evidence of the required appearance.
- Medical or psychological tests during the school day that cannot be scheduled after school or on the
 weekend. Students must show evidence (such as a note from the health center) that the tests could not
 be scheduled after school.
- Other extraordinary situations approved by the school administration.
- Disability-related absences.
- A student may also be excused for other exceptional reasons with approval of the Principal or designee.

How Parents/Caregivers Can Help

A student's understanding of the importance of day-to-day schoolwork is an important factor in the shaping of a character. Parents/caregivers can help their students by not allowing them to miss school needlessly. Here are some steps to take in the event of an absence:

- Parents/caregivers are asked to provide a written explanation for the absence or tardiness of a student. This will be required in advance for types of absences where advance notice is possible.
- To ensure continuity and maximum advantage of the school program, students must attend school each day and arrive on time. parents/caregivers are expected to telephone the school office prior to 8:00AM to report that their student will be absent on any given day.
- In addition, a written excuse from the parent/caregiver must be presented the day any pupil returns to school from an absence. Any situation resulting in an absence that may have serious extenuating circumstances must be brought to the attention of the Principal, by the parent/caregiver, as soon as those circumstances are apparent. Absent notes are given to the Principal. The notes should include the following: The date(s) of the absence, the student's full name, the reason for the absence, and the student's homeroom number. Notes are necessary even when a parent/caregiver has spoken to the Principal, Assistant Principal, or the main office about the absence.
- If a student is sick and cannot attend school, the caregiver must notify the school and consult with the Principal or school nurse to determine next steps.

Any student who is absent over three (3) consecutive days must report to the main office with their note and may be asked to see the school nurse. In instances of chronic or irregular absence reportedly due to illness, the school administration may request a physician's statement certifying such absences to be justified.

A call to the school nurses or school is not an automatic excuse for absence. Caregivers must send the

student with a note to the principal. For PreK-12 all notes must go to the schools' administrative assistants. For Grades 9-12 caregivers can also email the notes to attendanceMHS@maildenps.org

Excused Absences Policy

Malden Public Schools is preparing students for Career and Life readiness. Therefore, students are expected to attend school everyday.

Schools are only allowed to excuse absences that are a result of personal illness, significant life stressors (e.g., death of a family member), attending a medical appointment that cannot be made outside of school hours, participating in a legal proceeding, serving a suspension, attending educational opportunities that have been pre-approved by the school.

Unexcused Absences Policy

All other absences (e.g., repetitive absences due to illness that are not documented by medical professionals, family vacations, non-emergency family situations) are required to be marked as unexcused.

Three (3) unexcused absences per quarter will be allowed if students present a valid parent/caregiver explaining the absence. Four (4) or more unexcused absences in a quarter will require the teacher to give the student a 59 for that quarter. A lower grade will be given if the student's actual average is lower than 59.

Students can use the "Attendance Appeals Process." Contact the school Principal for more information.

Classroom Daily Attendance Records

Daily attendance are legal records and must be recorded accordingly.

- 1. Attendance must be taken by the teacher at the beginning of every class period in middle and high schools. After comparison of period attendance with the school's daily attendance, student cuts should be noted and addressed following the appropriate prevention/intervention steps.
- 2. Middle and high school students who are tardy should be marked absent for any class(es) they miss.
- 3. All students must be present in school for at least 3.5 hours in order for them to be counted as present.
- 4. Notations of early dismissal must be recorded with the time of dismissal and documentation indicating the reason should be kept on file in accordance with school protocol.

Did Not Report to School (DNR)

During the first week of school, homeroom teachers at all levels should make personal calls to the parents/caregivers of their students introducing themselves and inviting the parents/caregivers to either visit the school or to call at any time to check on the attendance and progress of their student. The message should reinforce the need for consistent attendance and the procedures a parent/caregiver should follow if their student is absent. In the event any student has not reported at the start of the school year, the teacher should inquire about the student's failure to attend. Teachers should document all communications by entering support notes in ASPEN, including if a student will not be returning to school. Please note that students are expected to report within eight (8) days of the first day of school or after initial assignment. On the tenth (10th) day, the student will automatically become a DNR (Did Not Report) and be discharged from the school. Parents/caregivers should be made aware of this procedure when called if their students have not reported. Every year before October 1st, districts discharge students who did not report to school.

Cutting Class/Skipping Class

Malden Public Schools considers cutting class to be a serious disruption to our school community rather than an attendance issue. Please refer to <u>Code of Conduct</u> for details about infractions and consequences related to our discipline policy.

Any student who is marked present in school, but does not report to class will be marked absent in the missing class and the absence will count as unexcused absence. Students can be subject to consequences addressed in the MPS Code of Conduct Policy

Vacations

Attending school every day is vital to students' academic success. Parents/caregivers and students should make every possible effort to plan vacations during the regular scheduled school vacations listed in the annual academic calendar. State policy requires Malden Public Schools to mark skipped days as unexcused absences. Vacations other than regularly scheduled school vacations are unexcused absences.

"Skipping School" is considered truancy as well as an unexcused absence. Missing school days directly before and after school breaks due to extended vacations is not permitted.

School based staff cannot excuse any vacation time from students' records and teachers are not permitted to give out make-up work for such instances.

Student Absence Notification Program

Families will be notified through an automatic call notification when their child is absent or tardy, as well as when their child is approaching a threshold of excessive absences. These calls will be made mid-morning each day.

Each Principal will notify a student's parent/caregiver by telephone within 3 days of the student's absence in the event the parent/caregiver has not informed the school of the absence. Each Principal or designee shall notify and meet with any student, and the parent/caregiver who has missed five (5) or more unexcused school days. All students must be present in school for at least 3.5 hours in order for them to be counted as present. The purpose of this meeting is to develop action steps to improve student attendance and shall be developed jointly by the Principal or designee, the student, and the student's parent/caregiver. The parties may seek input from other relevant school staff and/or officials from relevant public safety, health and human service, housing, and nonprofit agencies.

Home & Hospital Tutoring

When a physician determines that a student must remain at home or in a hospital on a day or overnight basis, or any combination of both, for medical reasons for more than 14 consecutive days, or who can be anticipated to accumulate more than 14 absences in a school year, the student should be offered tutoring at home or in the hospital. The referral should be made to the Home & Hospital Instruction program when a Physician Statement is received by the school nurse. The attendance for students participating in the Home & Hospital Instruction Program should be marked "constructively present" (CP). The school must document in writing all offers of home tutoring and acceptances or rejections by the parent or caregiver. If a parent/caregiver rejects home tutoring or other appropriate academic services for a student who will be absent for an extended period, a record of that rejection must be retained in the student's file and a 51A should be filed with the Department of Children and Families (DCF).

MANDATORY REPORTING

Mandated Reporting of Neglect and Abuse

All members of Malden Public Schools are mandated reporters. In accordance with Massachusetts state law, Massachusett General Law Chapter 119, Section 51A, a mandated reporter who, in their professional capacity, has reasonable cause to believe that a student is suffering physical or emotional injury resulting from: (i) abuse inflicted upon him which causes harm or substantial risk of harm to the student's health or welfare, including sexual abuse; (ii) neglect, including malnutrition; (iii) physical dependence upon an addictive drug at birth, shall immediately communicate with the department orally and, within 48 hours, shall file a written report with the department detailing the suspected abuse or neglect; or (iv) being a sexually exploited student; or (v) being a human trafficking victim as defined by section 20M of chapter 233. A mandated reporter may, in addition to filing the required report under this section, contact local law enforcement authorities or the student advocate about the suspected abuse or neglect.

ASSESSMENTS

District Assessments Overview SY 2025-2026

Expectations:

- All students in grades K-12 are required to take the following diagnostic assessments three times each year.
 - K-5 ELA: DIBELS benchmark assessments
 - K-8 ELA: i-Ready diagnostic assessments
 - 9-12 ELA: IXL diagnostic assessment
 - K-12 Math: IXL diagnostic assessment

Students educated with Massachusetts public funds are required by federal laws and the 1993 Massachusetts Education Reform Law, state law M. G. L. Chapter 69, section 1I, to participate in statewide testing, including the MCAS and ACCESS exams. Some students at Malden High School also participate in the PSAT/NMSQT, SAT, and AP exams. At intervals, random sampling of students, as determined by the US Department of Education, in the district take the national NAEP exam (National Assessment of Educational Progress).

SCHOOL VISITATION GUIDELINES

Malden Public Schools has visitation guidelines for all visitors, including parents/caregivers. Below are all the guidelines that all visitors must adhere to in order to ensure the safety of our students and staff. The safety of all students in our buildings is a priority.

Signing-in/out

- Visitors must not have any signs of illness such as colds, running nose, fever, etc.
- Visitors, including parents/caregivers and members of the media entering the Malden Public Schools must report to the main office and register at the time of arrival and departure. Sign-in logs and visitor badges will be provided. Signs will be posted on all outside doors directing visitors to register in the school's main office. Guests and visitors must sign-out when leaving the building.

Parking

• Parents/caregivers and visitors are responsible for obeying traffic rules. This involves drop off and pick up areas and parking in areas around the buildings.

Classroom Visits

- In order to not interfere with the education of students, the Principal has the right to deny a request to visit a particular classroom at a particular time, limit the number of visitors to a classroom, and to set classroom visitation times for a maximum of 15 minutes per content area (Literacy, math, science or social studies).
- There are some classrooms where no visitors are allowed due to the students' programmatic needs.
- Requests to visit a classroom must be communicated in writing in advance.
- Classroom visits should be planned in advance with the consent of the Principal. Requests for classroom visits will be approved on a case by case basis.
- A pre-meeting with representatives from the Office of Education will take place to answer questions, provide context and determine if a classroom visit is warranted.
- Approved classroom visits will be scheduled on a day/time that avoids disruption to instruction and assessments.
 - The Principal will give notice to teachers of approved classroom visits.
- During the classroom visit the parent/caregiver will adhere to observation guidelines established by Malden Public Schools, for example no pictures, videos or interacting with students while in the classroom.
 - The goal is to observe teaching and not to engage in conversations with the teacher or students in order to avoid disruption of the class assembly.
- A post-classroom visit debrief will take place giving the parent/caregiver an opportunity to ask questions.

Students' Privacy

- During the 15 minute classroom visit, visitors cannot record or photograph students.
- Visitors cannot engage in conversations with students or request information from students.

Observations for Special Education Programs (Current or Proposed)

In accordance with M.G.L. c. 71B §3, the Malden Public Schools permits parents/caregivers and their designees (defined by law as parent designated independent evaluators and educational consultants) to conduct in-school observations of their student's current or proposed special education program.

If a parent/caregivers or designee wishes to conduct such an observation, the following procedures shall be followed:

- 1. The parent/caregivers shall contact the Special Education Office and indicate that an observation is requested. The parent/caregivers will indicate the name of the person who will conduct the observation and the affiliation of that person to the student and/or parent/caregivers.
- 2. If the request for the observation comes from someone other than the parent/caregivers, the school district will need to confirm with the parent/caregivers the identity of the observer and ensure that the parent/caregivers consents to the observation. If the designee wishes to observe the student's records, the school district must obtain written consent from the parent/caregivers before allowing the designee to access the student's record in accordance with the Massachusetts student record regulations.
- 3. Upon notification of the request for the observation, the school district will provide timely access to the student's current or proposed educational program. The school district will contact the parent/caregivers and/or designee to schedule a mutually convenient time for the observation. Please be advised that there may be certain times of the year such as when the MCAS is being administered that the district generally will not schedule observations due to the disruption the observation would cause during these particular time periods. If the observation is requested during one of these time periods the district will work with the observer to find another mutually agreeable time for the observation.
- 4. The school district will also discuss with the parent/caregivers and/or designee in advance of the observation a reasonable time allotment for the observation. The observer will be permitted to observe both academic and non-academic activities if requested. Observation times will be determined on an individual basis depending on the circumstances of the particular student and/or program to be observed. The observation times will be of sufficient duration to enable the observers to evaluate a student's performance in the current program and the ability of a proposed program to enable such student to make effective progress.
- 5. The Malden Public Schools is responsible to ensure the safety of its students at all times. If, in the opinion of the school district, the observation threatens to compromise the safety of the students in the observed program, the integrity of the program during the observation, or if there is the threat of disclosure by the observer of confidential or personally identifiable information he or she may obtain while observing the program, the school district may impose reasonable limitations and restrictions on the observation. The school district will discuss these concerns with the observer prior to the observation and the school district will make reasonable efforts to work with the observer around these issues to ensure a safe and productive observation. Any limitation and restrictions imposed pursuant to this paragraph will be done on a case by case basis.
- 6. The Malden Public Schools may exercise its discretion at any time to reschedule or terminate an observation in the event of a building emergency or a disruption that impacts the physical or emotional well-being of the studentren in the school or the program being observed.

Grade 5 & MIDDLE SCHOOL HONORS PATHWAY

MIDDLE SCHOOL HONORS PATHWAY

We believe that every student must be held to high expectations, all middle school students need to engage in content deeply through problem-based learning, critical and creative thinking, and higher-order questioning. How we differentiate general curriculum from honors classes is in how we add sufficient challenges for students to continue to progress in their learning. All students need access to a curriculum that is challenging, exploratory, integrative, and relevant. What's challenging to one student is not to another. While the qualities of a challenging curriculum can be considered for all students, honors classes include these to a larger degree with more intensity to match the level of challenge needed for a student to stretch, grow, and be in a zone for true learning to occur (zone of proximal development).

General Curriculum

MPS general curriculum aligns to the Massachusetts Curriculum Frameworks that provide a consistent, clear understanding of what students are expected to learn. The standards are designed to be robust and relevant to the real world, reflecting the knowledge and skills that our students need for success in college and careers.

Our general curriculum presents rigorous grade-level expectations in the areas of Math, English Language Arts, Science and Social Studies/History and identifies the knowledge and skills students need in order to be successful in college and in future careers. These standards will help ensure that students have similar academic skills.

Students in general curriculum courses have homework on a regular basis, and will be expected to complete various types of assignments including complex writing assignments, project-based assignments, and long-term assignments. Some classroom time is devoted to reviewing concepts and problems encountered in the homework.

Honors Pathway (H)

The MPS Middle School Honors Pathway Recognition is to recognize students for their academic and civic skills and achievement in one or more of the four separate core content areas: English Language Arts (ELA), Math, Science, and Social Studies/History.

Students must complete all of the requirements outlined below to participate.

Students in the four core content areas must consistently demonstrate the following:

- 1. Grades in the class as well as honors content: 89-100
- 2. Differentiated assignments:
 - a. Complex multisteps assignments
 - b. More rigorous, honors-level work

Students will begin participation during the second quarter of the year. If successful with Honors content, they will receive a recognition ('Honors') on their middle-school transcript for the courses in which they participated.

HEALTH INFORMATION

Immunization Requirements/ Medical Records

In accordance to State Law Chapter 76, Section 15, no student should be admitted to school unless he or she has been immunized against diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis, measles, polio and other communicable disease specified by the department of health except for medical or religious reasons.

If it is for medical reasons, the parent/caregivers must provide physician documentation that he or she has personally examined the student and that the physical condition of the student is such that the student would be endangered by the vaccination. This documentation must be provided yearly, at the beginning of the school year.

If it is for religious reasons, the parent/caregivers must say so in writing yearly, at the beginning of the school year

All immunizations must meet Massachusetts's minimum requirement and must be certified in writing by a licensed physician, before a student is admitted to school.

Immunization vaccinations may be obtained from a private physician or by appointment from the Board of Health Clinic.

Department of Public Health regulations effective March 1, 1990, require students to present evidence of having been previously screened for lead poisoning or to be screened as a condition for entry into kindergarten. Parents/caregivers should provide documentation from their student's pediatrician.

Physical Examination Requirements

A complete physical examination is required of all students entering Malden Public Schools for the first time and at least three or four years thereafter. Completed physical examination forms must be presented no later than the first day of school in August.

No student will be able to attend school without providing all required medical documentation. Only upon completion of this process will a student be fully registered and allowed to begin school. For more information about immunizations and physical examination requirements, contact your student' school nurse.

Please note that if your student travels out of the country for more than 28 days at any time during the school year, including the summer break, it is Malden Public School Policy (per Malden Board of Health) that they must have a TB test done and read before re-registering or returning to school.

Please contact your student's doctor or visit the Malden Board of Health for this required TB screening. You may call the Board of Health directly at 781-397-7052 to schedule an appointment upon your return. Please bring TB test date and results to the Welcome Center if re-registering your child or bring it to your student's school nurse upon return, if during the summer break.

If you have any questions, please contact your student's school nurse directly by phone or email.

Immunization/Physical Requirements K-12 for Malden Public Schools

Kindergarten Entrance Requirements

- DPT (Diphtheria, Pertussis, Tetanus) 5 doses—- the last dose must be after the age of 4.
- Polio 4 doses the last dose must be after age 4.
- MMR 2 doses—-the first dose is after the age of 1
- Hepatitis B 3 doses
- Varicella 2 doses or documented disease history from MD
- TB testing per Malden Board of Health
 - TB risk assessment from a healthcare provider, if born in the US.
 - Actual TB test and results, if not born in the US or if a student has been out of the country for more than 28 days.
- Physical Exam done within 1 year of entrance to school.
- Lead screening most recent

Grade 5 & 9 Additional Requirements

- Physical Exam completed within the year of grade entrance
- Parents are encouraged to send in a copy of their student's yearly physical exam so the school health record can be updated.

Grade 7 Requirements

- 1 dose TDap
- 1 dose MenACWY

Grade 12 Requirements

- Beginning September (2024)
 - 2 doses of MenACWY (one dose given after 16th birthday)

Requirements for Students New to MPS

- Massachusetts State law immunization grade level requirements
- MUST have a current physical exam done within 1 year of entrance to school
- MUST have TB testing per Malden Board of Health
 - TB risk assessment from a healthcare provider, if born in the US.
 - Actual TB test and results, if not born in the US or if a student has been out of the country for more than 28 days.

Your Student's Health Needs

If a student has a health issue to be addressed (i.e. diabetes or severe allergies), we ask that parents/caregivers contact the school nurse directly by phone or email prior to the start of school as this allows time to plan for his care. If a specific health issue arises during the school year, please contact the nurses directly.

Emergency Health Forms

Current emergency health information is required for all students each school year. We ask your cooperation in completing and returning all of the required emergency health forms when school nurses send the forms to you in the first week of school.

This form should be completed by the parent/ caregivers. Contact information provided is used to reach parents/caregivers in times of illness and injury and, therefore, it is crucial that these forms be thoroughly completed. The information provided is also used to get to know your student's health needs and to plan for care. Also included on this form is permission to take over the counter medication if needed during the school day. Parent/caregiver signature is required.

You must also update your information on file with the Nurse's office during the year as needed.

A copy of this form is available on our website.

Medications

Medications in Malden Public Schools must be delivered to the School Nurse by a parent/guardian/adult. They also will not be sent home with a student.

At the end of the school year, medications need to be picked up by a parent/guardian/adult or they will be destroyed. The exceptions to this are epi-pens and inhalers, which are allowed to stay in school over summer vacation for the next school year. Expired inhalers and epi-pens will be destroyed if not picked up.

NURSES ARE NOT in the schools during the summer, so any medications left and needed for the summer will not be retrievable. If you think you will need your child's medication over the summer please let your school nurse know

No student is to carry medication with him in school including nonprescription medications. The only exceptions to this rule are for those students requiring emergency medications: inhalers, Epipens/Emergency Epinephrine, and diabetic supplies may be carried by the student.

Students must have a written order from their physician and permission from parents/caregivers on file with the school nurse to have medication in school (including emergency medications). Order forms may be printed from the website. Orders must be renewed each year.

Please note: all medication sent to school, to be given to your student, must be in a properly labeled pharmacy or manufacturer's container. If you require a container for school and home, please ask your pharmacist to give you two labeled containers.

Emergency Medication

Any medication required for emergency purposes must be delivered to the nurse by the first day of school. Parents/caregivers should contact the school nurse by phone or email prior to the start of school to inform her of the student's allergies.

Parents/caregivers must provide their emergency medication and a written order from the prescribing doctor. Order forms may be printed from the website and parents/caregivers must sign consent form

Students who play sports must inform the school nurse and coach/moderator that they carry an Epipen/Inhaler.

Athletes must also introduce themselves to the trainer at the start of the sport season and inform the trainer that they have an Epipen/Inhaler.

Prescription & Over The Counter (OTC) Medications

Any prescription or OTC medication brought onto school property must be taken under the supervision of the nurse in the nurse's office. A parent or caregivers consent form must be filled out and submitted to the nurse before any prescription or OTC medication is administered.

All prescription medications must also be accompanied by a physician consent form and submitted to the nurse's office before the nurse is able to administer the medication to the student.

All medications must be brought into school in the original container, labeled with the student's name, and include the dosage and instructions on how often the medication should be taken. It must be brought directly to the nurse upon entering the school.

Any student who is found to be carrying any medication will have the medication confiscated and will be subject to the appropriate consequences outlined in the <u>Substance Misuse Response Procedure</u> per the student Handbook.

School Health Screenings

As mandated by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health, School Health Unit, Malden Public Schools performs health screenings on students annually as follows:

- Hearing grades K-3, grade 7, grade 10.
- Vision grades K-5, grade 7, and grade 10.
- Height and weight-BMI grades 1, 4, 7, and 10
- Postural screenings all students grade 5-9
- SBIRT screenings grades 7 and 9

If your child fails the Vision, Hearing, or Postural screening—parents/caregivers will be notified by letter for follow up with your own physician.

BMI result letters will not be sent home; if you are interested in knowing your child's BMI, parent/caregiver may contact the school nurse.

Postural Screening Program will be for students whose parents/caregivers choose to have the screening. Letters will be sent home prior to the screenings.

SBIRT screenings grade 7 & 9 (Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment) will have letters sent home in grade 7 only prior to screenings.

Opt-out form is available for all of these screenings on our website. Please complete this form at the beginning of the school year and send this to the school nurse if you would like your child to opt out of any screenings.

Medical Dismissal

The school nurse or staff may recommend that a student be dismissed if she/he is too ill to take part in her/his coursework. When such a recommendation is made, the student's parents/caregivers will be

contacted directly by phone. Parents/caregivers must respond promptly when called to pick up their student for medical reasons.

To ensure students' health and safety, sick or injured K- 8 students are not permitted to depart school on their own – they must be accompanied by their parent/caregivers or someone who the parent/caregivers has authorized to pick up their student. However, if parents/caregivers are unable to be reached and the student is unable to travel safely on her/his own, school staff may contact law enforcement officials or emergency medical personnel to attend to the student.

Expectant & Parenting Student Policy

Expectant and parenting students have academic and other education rights to help students who are expectant and parenting to complete all course requirements. As part of this policy, all schools with grades 6-12 must appoint a school liaison for the Expectant and Parenting Students who is responsible for communicating with health care and parenting classes.

Concussion Compliance

All student athletes must complete the required concussion education program yearly. Any student with a prior history of head injury or concussion must have a "Report of Head Injury Form" completed by a parent/caregivers.

Head Injury/Concussion

Any student suffering from a head injury/concussion must complete the school protocol and be cleared by a physician prior to returning to sports/physical education classes. The school holds the final judgment in allowing a student to return to sports here, even if cleared by a physician.

SUPPORTS FOR PROMOTING ACADEMIC SUCCESS

Special Education

Malden Public Schools will ensure that all eligible students with disabilities receive a free and appropriate public education as defined by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. The purpose of Special Education State and Federal Law is to ensure that eligible Massachusetts students receive specialized instruction designed to to meet the unique needs of the child and allow the student to progress effectively in the least restrictive environment. Eligible students shall mean student ages three through twenty-one who have not attained a high school diploma or its equivalent, who has been determined by the Team to have a disability or disabilities, and as a consequence is unable to progress effectively in the general education program without specially designed instruction or is unable to access the general curriculum without a related service (603 CMR 28.02(9)).

A disability shall mean one or more of the following impairments:

-Autism -Neurological Impairment

-Developmental Delay -Emotional Impairment

-Intellectual Impairment -Communication Impairment

-Sensory Impairment -Physical Impairment

-Hearing -Health Impairment

-Vision-Specific Learning Disability-Deaf / Blind

Individualized Education Plan

IEP stands for *individualized educational plan*. It is a document written for a student with a disability that identifies a student's special education needs and describes the services a school district shall provide to meet those needs.. Often the IEP process can be intimidating and overwhelming to parents/caregivers. The following guidelines will help parents/caregivers become engaged participants in the development and implementation of an effective IEP.

A referral for a Special Education evaluation may be made by a parent/caregivers or any person in a care giving or professional position concerned with the student's development (603 CMR 28.04 (1)). Once a referral has been made, a consent form describing the types of testing suggested is sent to the parent/caregivers. In addition, a Parent/Caregiver's Rights brochure is provided as well as information on the opportunity to consult with the Special Education Administrator, prior to the evaluation, to discuss the recommended assessments and the evaluators. Once consent has been received from the parent/caregivers, a multi-disciplinary, appropriately credentialed, team will complete a thorough and comprehensive evaluation, including assessments in all areas of the suspected disability. A team meeting of all the evaluators and the parent/caregivers then meet to review the testing and to determine whether the student is eligible for Special Education. Once eligibility is determined, the team then develops an Individualized Education plan (IEP) for the student in the least restrictive environment in which the student can make meaningful educational progress. There is a wide range of services available to students with disabilities and what is provided will depend on the specific student's needs. In addition, special educators work with general education teachers to assist them in making accommodations and modifications for students with disabilities within the general curriculum.

Before the first IEP meeting:

- Gather information about your student which may include medical information, work samples, report cards, progress reports, classroom observations, independent evaluations, therapists' reports, state assessments; and most importantly, assessments based on your own first-hand knowledge.
- Draft a vision statement, with your student's input if possible, describing future goals for academics, behavior, post-secondary education, independence and employment.
- Assess your student's present level of ability in reading, writing, math, language, attention, social skills, fine & gross motor skills, self care, and technology. Even if you're not a trained educator, your assessment is invaluable; you know your student better than anyone else.
- Consider inviting a parents/caregivers and/or trusted friend to attend the IEP meeting with you as an advocate/support.

During the IEP meeting:

- Be informed, be vocal, and advocate for the best interests of your student.
- Expect goals that address a specific need and that they are measurable and appropriately challenging.
- Find out how progress will be measured and when you will be provided with progress reports.
- Consider related services that may be needed, such as therapy (speech and language, physical, occupational) counseling, transportation, nursing and teacher training.
- Note which program modifications and accommodations are proposed; for example, extended time for tests, fewer concepts presented, etc.
- Come to consensus about where the IEP will be carried out: within the general education classroom, within a special education classroom, or in a combination of the two.
- Start early discussing what will happen after high school. Consider now what will pave the way for successful postsecondary education, employment and independent living.

After the IEP meeting:

- Explain any changes to your student and the reasons for them so he/she is not surprised or upset by unexpected changes in the routine.
- Monitor your student's progress. If there are significant gains, a substantial lack of improvement or a new issue needs to be addressed, request an IEP team meeting before the annual review.

Your IEP Rights

 The District will provide you with a Notice of Procedural Safeguards that explains your rights including your rights to participation, prior written notice, consent, dispute resolution including due process rights, an interpreter, translated materials, scheduled meetings that works with you & the team,

For questions regarding special education please contact the Special Education Team Chair at your child's school. Additional information is also available online at the Massachusetts Bureau of Special Education Appeals website.

504 Accommodation Plans

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 is a non-discrimination statute that ensures disabled students have educational opportunities and benefits provided to non-disabled students. Students may be eligible for educational services under Section 504, as well as under State and Federal Special Education laws. Eligibility under 504 requires that a student has, or has a record of having, or is regarded as having, a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits major life activity. Major life activities include, but

are not limited to, learning, communicating, self-care, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, working, or performing manual tasks. Services are available to students meeting the above criteria through a 504 Accommodation Plan. This includes school-sponsored non-academic and extracurricular services and activities.

Who can refer a student for a 504 plan?

The 504 plan process may be started by a parent's written request or the school's referral for an evaluation when the student is having academic, social, or behavioral problems that limit one or more major life activities. Major life activities include walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, and learning. In addition, the district must believe that the student needs additional support in the regular education classroom in order to access the curriculum. Section 504 requires consent from the parents *before conducting* evaluations.

How does a student qualify for a section 504 plan?

In order to be eligible for a 504 plan, a student must attend a school that receives federal financial assistance (which includes all public schools in Massachusetts). In addition:

- The student must be of school age;
- The student must have information establishing a mental, psychological, and/or physical disability (including a disability affecting behavior); and
- The disability must substantially limit one or more major life activities.

Students may be eligible for a 504 plan if a temporary disability limits a major life activity.

How is a 504 plan different from special education?

In order to be found eligible for special education services and an Individualized Education Program (IEP), a student must be diagnosed with a disability *and* must, as a result of that disability, require specialized instruction and/or related services in order to make effective progress.

Unlike a special education student, a student with a 504 plan is able to make effective progress in school without the need for specialized instruction and/or related services. However, a student with a 504 plan requires accommodations in order to gain equal access to instruction and/or the school facility. A student's 504 plan will provide accommodations that allow a student with an impaired major life activity to have the same level of access to the instruction, school activities, and school building as students without disabilities. A student with an IEP can also have a 504 plan that extends to K-and college levels.

SUBSTANCE ABUSE & INTERVENTION

Any possession of illegal or misused medication of substances is subject to the Malden Public Schools' Code of Conduct.

District-Wide Policy

The Malden Public Schools Substance Misuse and Abuse Prevention Policy ("Policy") was written in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 52 of the Acts of 2016, An Act Relative to Substance Use, Treatment, Education and Prevention, signed by Governor Baker in March 2016 requiring schools to have a policy regarding substance use prevention and the education of all students about the dangers of substance use. The Policy has been developed using the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's (DESE) Guidance on School Policies Regarding Substance Use Prevention and the Safe and Supportive Schools Model as its guide.

As part of this model, the Policy outlines clear expectations for the behavior of students relative to substance use as well as to provide guidance for the faculty and staff when responding to all substance-related incidents.

Additional information and community resources can be found online at: https://www.cityofmalden.org/215/Substance-Use-Disorder-Resources

Information can also be found in a paper form at any of our Schools' Main Offices.

Substance Misuse Response

In the event that a school employee suspects or identifies a student as being under the influence of, in possession of, or as using any alcohol, tobacco, marijuana, or other drugs, that teacher is to report the student to the appropriate administrator immediately and the student shall be escorted from the classroom.

If a student is found to be in violation of the Policy, parent(s)/caregivers(s) will be notified to meet with an administrator. Students will be referred to their school counselor or administrator for assessment and will be subject to the following consequences and/or additional action at the Principal's discretion.

Voluntary Self-Disclosure Response

If a student voluntarily confides a substance-use problem to a school employee, the employee will refer the student to their school counselor or administrator. The counselor or administrator will make an assessment and help the student identify available support services. The counselor or administrator will advise the student of The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) -confidentiality protections under the law and will work with this student to develop an intervention plan. The student will not be subject to the Substance Misuse Response Procedure unless under the influence or in possession of any substance or paraphernalia at the time of notification.

Student Athletes

In addition to the Malden Public School Substance Abuse Policy and consequences outlined in the Code of Conduct and Substance Misuse and Abuse Response Process, all student athletes will be held to

Massachusetts Interscholastic Athletic Association (MIAA) standards and consequences as outlined in the MIAA Handbook and Guidelines on Chemical Health.

Mandated Reporting of Abuse

All members of Malden Public Schools are mandated reporters. In accordance with Massachusetts state law, Massachusett General Law Chapter 119, Section 51A, a mandated reporter who, in their professional capacity, has reasonable cause to believe that a student is suffering physical or emotional injury resulting from: (i) abuse inflicted upon him which causes harm or substantial risk of harm to the student's health or welfare, including sexual abuse; (ii) neglect, including malnutrition; (iii) physical dependence upon an addictive drug at birth, shall immediately communicate with the department orally and, within 48 hours, shall file a written report with the department detailing the suspected abuse or neglect; or (iv) being a sexually exploited student; or (v) being a human trafficking victim as defined by section 20M of chapter 233. A mandated reporter may, in addition to filing the required report under this section, contact local law enforcement authorities or the student advocate about the suspected abuse or neglect.

Incident Report

Any incident involving a student's use of substances at school will be documented. The nurse or another school staff member will contact the parent/ caregivers; in the event that the parent/caregivers cannot be reached, the nurse will send a report home with the student. In emergencies, school staff will notify the people indicated on the student's Emergency Contact, as well as law enforcement office or emergency medical personnel, as necessary or in the best judgment of the school nurse and/or school staff. In any emergency, Malden Public Schools absolute priority will be to first attend to the emergency and ensure the safety and health of the student or students involved in the incident, then secure the surrounding area to address the unsafe conditions, and then contact parents/caregivers, and/or emergency contacts.

STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES

Guidance Counselors / Adjustment Counselors

The Student Support Team (SST) is an integral part of the educational team providing services to students, parents/caregivers, teachers and administrators. The counselor's goal is to help each student identify their needs, interests, and aptitudes and to use this information to get the most from their educational experience.

The guidance counselor will provide the following services:

- Individual counseling regarding personal problems, school, or home related.
- Information regarding school programs and course selections.
- Academic appraisal through interpretation of test results.
- Vocational and career information and educational opportunities beyond high school.

If a student wants to see the guidance counselor or school adjustment counselor, he/she should go before school to make an appointment. If an emergency exists, other arrangements will be made.

Threats To Self and/or Others

Staff are required to report all threats to school principal and/or other administrators including threat of self-harm or harm to others.

- If a student threatens their own life, this must be reported immediately to the school Principal and support staff (school social worker, school counselor, student support team etc.).
- If a student threatens the life of others, this will immediately be brought to the attention of the school Principal and support staff (school social worker, school counselor, student support team etc.). According to the level of safety, the student may also be subject to the Code of Conduct Policy.

SCHOOL SAFETY PLANS

The purpose of the School Emergency Operations Plan (SEOP) is to provide information on how to respond to emergency incidents by outlining the responsibilities and duties of the district, school, its employees, and students. This plan has been customized to meet the specific and unique needs, capabilities, and circumstances found at any of our schools.

Each year, the School Administration shall review and certify that the plan is current and accurate. This must be done with the School Level Crisis Response Team at the beginning of each school year.

The Superintendent of Schools must meet with the police and fire chief to formulate or review a school-specific Emergency Operations Plan at the beginning of each school year as required by Section 363 of Chapter 159 of the Acts of 2000 in Massachusetts General Laws and as enacted by the State Legislature, and conforms to the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and all applicable Homeland Security Presidential Directives.

The SEOP plan provides teachers, staff, students, parents, and other members of the community with assurances that the district and school has established guidelines and procedures to respond to incidents/hazards in an effective way.

Emergency & Evacuation Procedures

Emergency and evacuation procedures are a very serious part of the school routine. Whether it is a drill or real emergency, the actions that students and staff should take are the same. Emergency drills are held throughout the year. The drills are planned in such a way as to ensure the safety of students and staff in the shortest possible time and in the most efficient and orderly fashion. We will be practicing Safety Drills throughout the school year: Shelter-In-Place, Lockdown, and Fire Drills, This ensures that all students will know what to do in the event of an actual emergency.

Shelter In Place

If a school has to go into a "Shelter In Place," it is announced over the intercom so all staff and students know that they have to stay in their current locations without walking around the building, classes continue as usual. A "Shelter In Place" is meant to restrict and control unnecessary movement of staff and students in the building. Shelter In Place is when there is police activity in the area, a medical emergency inside the school, ambulance pickup, power outage or weather event.

Lockdown

We use "Lockdown" when there is an emergency impacting a school campus that prevents the safe evacuation of a school building and requires steps to shelter students and staff from danger. All staff must lock the doors, pull down the blinds, silent all cell phones, turn off all lights, including computer monitors. Direct students to a designated safe space.

Fire Drill Procedures

Students will follow the directions of the teacher and obey the posted fire drill procedure for each room. The following rules will be observed:

- Look for the fire drill instructions in every room.
- Walk in silence and at a normal pace.
- Stay with the class at all times and assemble in an area outside the building designated by the teacher.
- Do not return to the building until told to do so by the teacher.
- Upon your re-entry to the building, proceed directly back to the classroom.
- If any alarm is sounded when a student is not in a classroom, leave by the closest exit and report to the nearest teacher.

Fire Alarms

Massachusetts law provides for imprisonment in a jail or house of correction for up to one year, or for a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100) and up to five hundred dollars (\$500), for anyone who causes a false alarm of fire (M.G.L. c. 269, § 13). Anyone apprehended making a false alarm on school property will be suspended and referred to the authorities for court action. For more information and details about the Malden Public Schools District Safety plan please visit the Malden Public Schools website.

Student Monitoring and Safety Supervision:

All students in Kindergarten must be escorted by a staff member or use the "Student Buddy System" (two students going together) to and from the location they need to go: for example a student going to the nurse must be escorted by a staff member or use the buddy system. When the student is ready to go back to join their classmates, the student must be escorted by a staff member or use the buddy system. Students must have a classroom pass to see the nurse, to go to the main office, etc.

For students above Kindergarten, the teacher and staff that the student went to see (for example, nurse, principal, etc.) should call each other to let them know that the student is heading towards them. All students outside the school building during recess or participating in any school related activity must be supervised by staff at all times. Staff on duty who are monitoring / supervising students outside the school building during school related activities cannot use their cell phones (unless it is for calling school staff regarding a student/s or an emergency) or engage in any other type of distractions that take their attention away from students.

LUNCH INFORMATION

The Malden Public Schools shall support the wellness of students and staff through good nutrition, regular physical activity and positive dietary and lifestyle practices as part of its total learning environment. Our schools contribute to the overall health status of students by providing nutritious foods and opportunities for physical activity, by facilitating wellness through teaching support and promotion of good nutrition and physical activity. Improved health optimizes student performance potential and ensures that students need to be healthy to learn and learn to be healthy. In fostering and establishing a school environment that promotes students' health, well-being, and ability to learn by supporting healthy eating, students are required to eat lunch in the cafeteria during their lunch period.

All students receive a free breakfast and lunch.

For the High School, the courtyard is available during the lunch period, during good weather, for relaxation and quiet conversation. Students receive a free lunch, but they can purchase a second lunch. For safety reasons, students are not allowed to bring glass bottles containing food or beverages to school. All eating and drinking is confined to the cafeteria, unless another arrangement has been approved by the Principal. Students may not return to the general area of the school until the lunch period is over. All students are responsible for cleaning up after themselves.

STUDENT DRESS CODE

Malden Public Schools is a serious place of learning. There is an expectation that students dress in keeping with reasonable standards of safety, health, and cleanliness, so as not to detract from the educational process. Student attire should not disrupt the educational environment. If a student is wearing clothing that disrupts the educational process, such as clothes that promote drugs, alcohol, or violence, he or she will be asked to go home and change or to wear a t-shirt provided by the school staff. The discretion of administration will prevail in whether the clothing creates a disruption.

In accordance with Massachusetts State Law, students have the right to freedom of expression, provided that such right shall not cause any disruption or disorder within the school. Additionally, Massachusetts law prohibits discrimination based on natural and protective hairstyles.

There is an expectation that students dress in a manner that is appropriate for a place of study; and are obeying to reasonable standards of safety, health, and cleanliness, so as not to detract from the education process. If style demonstrates that it is disruptive to the educational process, constitutes a threat to the safety and health of self and others, or is in violation of any statute, it will not be permitted in school. The intent of this document is to create a standard that will align with overall expectations of appropriate attire that contribute to a positive school environment. By no means is the desired outcome of this document for students to be judged or shamed.

Clothing that creates a risk of substantial and material disruption or disorder within the school is not acceptable. This may include:

- Clothing, including face masks with any picture and/or wording that relates, advertises, or infers to sex, alcohol, drugs, tobacco, or displays lewd, vulgar, indecent or "plainly offensive" language (masking is optional)
- Hats, hoods, bandanas, or any other head coverings (except for religious or cultural reasons)
- Clothing worn in such a manner as to reveal undergarments.
- Strapless tops and halter tops.
- Skirts and shorts where buttocks are visible.
- Sunglasses worn inside the school building.
- Clothing or article that suggests gang activities.
- Chains (wallet, belt, large neck chains, etc.).
- Spiked collars, spiked belts, spiked bracelets.
- Pants, when the waist falls below the hip.

The school Principal, having discretion to render judgments regarding what is and what is not appropriate, may, if necessary, waive these policy restrictions in religious and/or medical situations. The Principal will determine what consequences should follow when a student does not comply with this policy. A student may change to wear a school T-Shirt offered by the school, bring their own change of clothes, or a parent/caregivers may be required to bring in a change of clothing.

HOMEWORK POLICY

Recommended, but not to exceed the time described below:

Grade Level	# of Assignments	# Minutes
PreK-Kindergarten	1-2 assignments per night	30 minutes per night
Grades 1-2	1-3 assignments per night	30 minutes per night
Grades 3-5	2-4 assignments per night	30-60 minutes per night
Grades 6-8	3-5 assignments per night	90-120 minutes per night No more than the max recommended 120 minutes per night
Grades 9-12	3-5 assignments per night	No more than 2.5 hours per day including all subjects

No homework will be assigned over Thanksgiving, Winter, February, and Spring Breaks.

Projects, presentations, or other assignments will not be due until at least the second day following the break.

The same policy applies for the administration of assessment.

Educators are not to "double up" on homework assigned before a break.

Homework Philosophy

A common question that parents always ask is, "How much time should my student dedicate to homework every day?" It's not an easy question to answer. As we all know, every student learns differently from each other. While some kids do, substantially, better in school, by completing one hour of homework every day. There might be some others, who require two hours of homework, but only see a slight improvement in their grades.

Late Work & Make-Up Work: It is the responsibility of all students to make up for work that is late or missed, including homework, when they return from any absence. This is done by seeing his/her teacher(s) after school and working out a schedule to complete the work missed. Each K-12 teacher is available until 2:45

each day, Monday through Thursday to be of assistance to students or to confer with parents/caregivers. Once a week, grades 7-12 teachers will be after school for one hour after dismissal to assist students.

PROMOTION REQUIREMENTS

Elementary School: Promotion and Retention (SC Policy IKE)

At the end of each school year, elementary students are:

- 1. Promoted to the next grade
- 2. Promoted "on trial" to the next grade with the status of the child reconsidered after the second report card
- 3. Promoted upon successful completion of summer school
- 4. Non-promoted or retained in grade
- 5 . Placed in the next grade because of two previous non-promotions

Retention should never come as a surprise to parents. Rather, they should be informed by letter, supplementary reports, and conferences that their child is not doing satisfactory work. School administration and faculty have always been tactful in dealing with this delicate matter and should continue to do so.

- 1. Each child who is being considered for retention is to be reviewed by the Student Support Team (SST) to determine the causes which seem to contribute to the child's present difficulties and to determine the appropriate remedies including but not limited to retention.
- 2. Kindergarten children should have their promotion founded on the individual child's general readiness for grade 1. Among other considerations, this would include achievement in fundamental skills required, for learning to read and do mathematics as well as attaining adequate social skills. Kindergarten children should not be promoted on trial to grade 1.
- 3. Communication with parents is of the utmost importance. Such communication will include teacher letters, mid-quarter supplementaries, report card comments, telephone conferences, school conferences, etc.
- 4. While parents may be receiving ongoing communication during the school year regarding their child's progress or lack thereof, discussions regarding retention should not be broached until third quarter report cards have been sent home.

High School Promotion

All students must complete all the State MassCORE requirements

What is the MassCore Program of Study?

MassCore is a state-recommended, rigorous program of study that aligns high school coursework with college and workforce expectations. The recommended program of studies includes 4 years of English; 4 years of Math; 3 years of lab-based Science; 3 years of History/Social Science; 2 years of the same world language; 1 year of the Arts; 5 additional years of "core" courses in any of the above subjects, business education, career, and technical education, health, or technology.

Additional learning opportunities such as Advanced Placement courses, dual enrollment, a senior project, online courses for high school or college credit, and service- or work-based learning are recommended. Students who complete the MassCore program of study are better prepared for college and career.

- Take and pass four English (or ESL) courses
- Take and pass three history courses, including U.S. History 1 & 2
- Take and pass four integrated math sequences Math I, Math 2, Math 3, or the traditional sequence a 4th year choice of PreCalculus, Calculus, Statistics, Advanced Quantitative Reasoning,
- Take and pass three lab science courses, including at least two of the following: biology, chemistry, physics
- Take and pass two years of the same world language courses (or two additional ESL courses) Not necessary on consecutive years
- Take and pass two semester courses in the arts
- Take and pass four semester courses in physical education
- Take and pass one semester course in health
- Take and pass one semester course in computers
- Earn a Competency Determination (CD) in MCAS ELA, math, and science & technology/engineering

GRADING

Progress Reports & Report Cards

Progress Reports and Report Cards can be viewed on ASPEN, our student information system, for students in Grades PK-12. Students and parents/caregivers can access Aspen with a username and password. Please contact the student's house office for a username and password.

The ELC does not issue progress reports, except for students with disabilities. Special Education progress reports are issued twice per year.

Progress Reports

The purpose of the mid-term progress report is as follows:

- To provide parents/caregivers with information on how their student is doing in school.
- To provide positive feedback to students who are doing well.
- To provide information to students who are not doing well and to give them the opportunity to improve their performance before the marking period ends.
- To provide information about how special education students are progressing with the goals and benchmarks laid out in their IEPs.

National Honor Society

The National Association of Secondary School Principals in 1921 founded the National Honor Society. In 1927, Head Master Thornton Jenkins established the John W. Hutchins Chapter named in honor of a former Headmaster of Malden High School. The purpose of the National Honor Society is to create an enthusiasm for scholarship, to stimulate the desire to render service, to promote leadership, and to develop character in the students of American secondary schools. Each chapter of the National Honor Society is governed by a constitution and the National Council closely regulates membership standards. Membership in the National Honor Society is based upon excellence in four areas: scholarship, leadership, service, and character. Each category is considered independently and information, beginning with the freshman year, is taken into account. Outstanding qualities of leadership, service, scholarship, and character are given equal consideration during the selection process. Eligible members of the Sophomore, Junior, and Senior classes will be notified and invited to apply for membership in the National Honor Society after the second quarter.

The following minimum standards must be met as consideration for membership:

- A minimum Cumulative GPA of 88% resulting from the average of all year long academic classes (math, science, language, social sciences, and English).
- Candidates must have attended Malden High School for the equivalent of one semester.
- Candidates receiving a majority vote of the Faculty Board will be inducted into the chapter.
- A member may retain his or her membership as long as he or she continues to fulfill the
 requirements used as a basis for his or her election. During the year, members are expected to
 participate in NHS activities, meetings and projects.
- Members are asked to complete and turn in an absence form when they miss a meeting or activity.
 Two unexcused absences for the whole year will result in a warning and a third unexcused absence will result in the member's dismissal.

Class Rank/Grade Point Average

GPA is determined for students using a weighted 4.0 scale and is based on a framework from MA College/University System for Calculating/Re-calculating GPA. GPA is based on cumulative semester grades and includes all AP, Honors, and College Preparatory courses.

A chart is used for the calculation of class rank. This chart is available through the Guidance Department. When the rank is computed, each course is assigned a numerical value from the chart. This numerical value is assigned to each grade on the report card each quarter. The values are totaled and averaged by dividing by the total number of courses per year or for as many quarters and courses that are being computed. All courses will be calculated with the exception of courses graded on a pass/fail basis. Class Rank will be calculated on a minimum of five courses. In the case of a student taking fewer than seven courses, which are included in the class rank, the average of numerical values should be based on that number of courses.

To be a speaker at graduation, or to be ranked in the Top Ten students, a student must have completed 75% (15 credits) of his or her education (course work) at Malden High School. Senior rankings are official at the end of the third quarter for graduation speaking purposes.

Summer school credit recovery is accepted, not to exceed 4 credits. Students must pass Physical Education. Students who receive an F are ineligible for that season's tryout. A grade of incomplete (INC) renders a student ineligible until the grade is made up following school policy.

PERSONAL ITEMS & PROHIBITED ARTIFACTS

Personal Items

Students are expected to be responsible for their own personal items. The school will not assume responsibility for valuables left in desks, homerooms, coat pockets, or unlocked lockers.

Parents/caregivers should put name labels on all students' personal belongings. These markings will help school staff locate lost items.

Bicycles, Roller Blades, Skateboards & Scooters

Students who take the above forms of transportation to and from school should secure their method of transportation to the bike racks outside of the school. These items are not allowed in the school building and may not be used during school hours. Students should bring their own bicycle locks or otherwise ensure the security of their personal transportation methods while stored outside of the school building. The school will not assume responsibility for any bicycles or other methods of transportation.

Prohibited Items

The following articles will be considered inappropriate and not allowed to be used inside of the school building:

- -Roller blades and/or skateboards (Please see section above)
- -Scooters (Please see section above)
- –Bicycles (Please see section above)
- -Segways
- -Hoverboards
- -Laser Pointers, which are considered dangerous weapons and will be confiscated permanently
- -Dangerous Weapons
- -Alcohol, Tobacco, and Drugs as defined under G. L. c. 94C

Lighters and matches

Electronic cigarettes, vaporizers

Firearms

Firecrackers

Any student in possession of the stated articles, not including dangerous weapons, alcohol, tobacco, or drugs, will have the following occur:

FIRST TIME – Said article will be taken from a student and may be picked up after school. SECOND TIME – Said article will be taken from student and returned to parents/caregivers only.

Dangerous weapons, alcohol, tobacco, and drugs will be confiscated and disposed of, or provided to law enforcement. The student will also face disciplinary consequences and their actions may be referred to law enforcement n and parents/caregivers.

Cell Phone Policy

Malden Public Schools cell phone privileges for PreK-Grade 8 students and Grades 9-12 students are as follows:

Grades: PreK-8

The use of electronic devices such as cell phones, earbuds, and headphones in classrooms is strictly prohibited. All such devices should be placed in teacher-designated areas.

Though teachers have much latitude around cell phones in class, it should not be used as the primary media for school work; students should have and use a chromebook or computer.

Grades: 9-12

The use of electronic devices such as cell phones, earbuds, and headphones in classrooms is strictly prohibited. All such devices should be AWAY/OUT OF SIGHT (i.e., in backpacks or teacher-designated areas). "Use" includes texting, social media, checking email, and having the cell phone face down on the desk. The only time it is acceptable to use an electronic device (cell phone, headphones, etc) is with EXPLICIT permission from teachers. In this case, the use of a cell phone is written into the lesson plan.

Grades PreK-12

Consequences for Violating Cell Phone Policy

If students violate the school's cell phone policy, the following may occur:

First offense: The student's cell phone will be confiscated by their Assistant /House Principal or designated faculty member and held until the end of the school day before the student can pick it up. Their teacher will notify their parent/caregiver of the incident and explain the cell phone policy.

Second offense: The student's cell phone will be confiscated and held in the Assistant/House Principal's office until the end of the school day. The student's parents/caregivers will be contacted and informed that they must pick up the cell phone.

Third offense: The student's cell phone will be confiscated and held in the Assistant/House Principal's office until the student's parents/caregivers are able to come to pick it up. The cell phone must remain at home for a period of 4 weeks. If the student is observed with the phone during this period, the phone will need to remain home for the remainder of the academic school year and a suspension hearing will be held with the House Principal.

*MPS is not liable or responsible for lost, stolen or damaged cell phones or other devices. MPS will not investigate any loss, theft, or damage, therefore students are strongly advised to store their devices in their lockers, in their bags, or at home.

**The MPS administration reserves the right to adjust these consequences on a case-by-case basis if needed. For example, extreme behaviors that break the law or engage in cyber bullying or harassment of other students may result in suspension and/phone privilege revocation.

Student Lockers

Schools assign lockers or cubby spaces to each student to store their school supplies and personal belongings. It is important for parents/caregivers and students to understand that lockers remain the property of the Malden Public Schools while students are using them. <u>School staff have the right to search lockers and any personal items inside the locker</u> (such as coat pockets).

School staff inspect all lockers at least once a year for general clean-up. They also inspect lockers when they suspect a safety or security problem. Any illegal, prohibited, or potentially dangerous items, or evidence of a crime found during a locker search will be given to the appropriate authorities.

Each school has different locker procedures on how they assign lockers to students.

Locker Searches

Students' personal belongings, desks, lockers, and vehicles may be subject to search by school personnel when school administrators have reasonable grounds to believe that a search will reveal evidence that a student has violated the law and/or the school rules. Ordinarily, searches will be conducted by a member of the school administration in the presence of another adult. As soon as is practicable after the conclusion of a search, the parents/guardians of the student will be notified. Similarly, if a search uncovers objects prohibited by school rules, or which may be otherwise disruptive to the educational environment, these objects may be retained by school officials and returned later to the student or his/her parents/guardians. Searches may include the use of canines.

Search Procedures

- 1. It is prohibited to store any illegal items/substances in violation of any school rule in a locker. Items/substances prohibited from being in lockers include: guns, knives, weapons (real or fake), illegal drugs, alcoholic beverages, fireworks, explosives, fire/smoke/odor producing products, and any other article not permitted in school.
- 2. At the discretion of a School Administrator, a student's locker, backpack, and personal belongings may be searched when there is reasonable grounds to believe that prohibited items/substances may be found and when the student is on school grounds, or at a school-sponsored or school-related event. Should prohibited items/substances be found, they will be seized.
- 3. A search of a student's belongings will be performed and seizure of prohibited items/substances discovered in the course of such a search will occur only if there exist reasonable grounds for suspecting that the student has violated, or is violating, either the law or the rules of the school. The search will be conducted in a manner reasonably related to its objectives, and will not be excessively intrusive in light of the age and the gender of the student and the nature of the infraction.
- 4. When possible within reason, a search of a student will be made in the presence of a School Administrator accompanied by another adult.
- 5. When possible within reason, a search of a student's automobile parked on school grounds will be in the presence of the student(s) whose conduct is under scrutiny and in the presence of a school official.
- 6. Should a search reveal objects or substances, the possession of which may give rise to a crime, notice will be given to the police. In the event of the questioning, custody or arrest of students by law enforcement officials, the school Principal, or his/her designee, will be present when possible. The Principal will request that all procedural safeguards are observed and that parents are notified.

Vandalism Policy

The School Committee recognizes that acts of vandalism committed against public and private property are costly and require positive action through educational programs. Consequently, the Committee will support various programs aimed at reducing the amount of vandalism.

The School Committee expects that all individuals who use and enter Malden Public Schools buildings and premises will respect, appreciate and value the work that staff do every single day to keep buildings/premises safe and welcoming for the students, staff, and the community.

Every citizen of the city, staff members, students, and members of the police department are urged by the School Committee to cooperate in reporting any incidents of vandalism to property under control of the school department, and the name(s) of the person or persons believed to be responsible. Each employee will report to the Principal of the school every incident of vandalism known to them and, if known, the names of those responsible.

The Superintendent is authorized to sign a criminal complaint and to press the charges against perpetrators of vandalism against school property, and is further authorized to delegate, as they see fit, authority to sign such complaints and to press charges.

Parents/guardians and students will be made aware of the legal implications involved. Reimbursement will be sought for all or part of any damages.

Definition

Vandalism is defined as the willful or malicious destruction or damaging of private or public property in a manner that defaces, mars, or otherwise adds a physical blemish that diminishes the property's value. Vandalism includes graffiti, and defacing and/or destroying school equipment, buildings, or property in any way (classrooms, offices, shared areas, playgrounds, etc). Graffiti that includes hate speech or hate symbols can be considered a hate crime.

Vandalism includes willful damage to district technology including electronic hardware and software. Vandalism includes unauthorized modifications, installing or removing programs, tampering with restricted files, changing settings on any computer or technology resource that should only be changed by an administrator.

The Malden Public Schools assigns a laptop to each student in grades 1-12. Each laptop must be returned to the school at the end of the school year in good working condition within the usual usage period. If a laptop or any other electronic devices assigned to the student is vandalized or intentionally damaged, parents/caregivers will incur a financial penalty to cover the full cost of replacement. The district does not have insurance or the means to replace or cover the technology damage.

Hazing

All students should understand that hazing, defined as any conduct or behavior, which willfully, or recklessly, endangers the physical or mental health of any student or person, is a crime (See Appendix: pp. I, M.G.L. Chapter 269). Thus, hazing, or any behavior which can be construed to have the effect of hazing is prohibited while students are on school grounds, or at school-sponsored or school-related events. Those having knowledge of such behavior are required to inform a teacher, or other school official, of it.

Bullying Prevention and Intervention

The Malden Public Schools prohibits all forms of bullying in school or at school-sponsored events/activities, whether on or off campus. All forms of bullying at school will be subject to disciplinary actions, which may include suspension. Off campus bullying which causes a disruption within the school setting may be grounds for disciplinary action. Relevant sections of the law (M.G.L. c. 71, § 370) are described below.

Definitions

- **Perpetrator** is a student or member of a school staff including, but not limited to, an educator, administrator, school nurse, cafeteria worker, custodian, bus driver, athletic coach, advisor or an extracurricular activity or para- professional who engages in bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation.
- **Bullying** is the repeated use by one or more students or member of a school staff including, but not limited to, an educator, administrator, school nurse, cafeteria worker, custodian, bus driver, athletic coach, advisor of an extracurricular activity or ESP of a written, verbal or electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a target that:
 - o causes physical or emotional harm to the target or damage to the target's property;
 - places the target in reasonable fear of harm to himself/herself or of damage to his/her property;
 - creates a hostile environment at school for the target;
 - o infringes on the rights of the target at school; or
 - materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school. Bullying includes cyberbullying.
- **Cyberbullying** is bullying through the use of technology or any electronic devices such as telephones, cell phones, computers, and the Internet. It includes, but is not limited to, email, instant messages, text messages, and Internet postings.
- Hostile environment is a situation in which bullying causes the school environment to be
 permeated with intimidation, ridicule or insult that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to alter the
 conditions of the student's education.
- Target is a student against whom bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation has been perpetrated.
- Retaliation is any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment directed against a student who
 reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has
 reliable information about bullying.

Prohibition Against Bullying

Bullying is prohibited:

- on school grounds,
- property immediately adjacent to school grounds,
- at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, function, or program whether on or off school grounds,
- at a school bus stop, on a school bus or other vehicle owned, leased, or used by a school district or school,

- through the use of technology or an electronic device that is owned, leased, or used by a school district or school (for example on a computer or over the Internet),
- at any program or location that is not school-related, or through the use of personal technology or
 electronic devices, if the bullying creates a hostile environment at school, or material and
 substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school.
- Retaliation against a person who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying is prohibited.

Reporting Bullying

Anyone, including a parent or guardian, student, or school staff member, can report bullying or retaliation. Reports can be made in writing or orally to the Principal or another staff member, or reports may be made anonymously.

School staff members must report immediately to the Principal or his/her designee if they witness or become aware of bullying or retaliation. Staff members include, but are nESPot limited to, educators, administrators, counselors, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, athletic coaches, advisors to an extracurricular activity or ESP. Principals will investigate reports of bullying in accordance with Malden Public Schools Bullying Prevention and Intervention Plan.

Student Record Regulations & FERPA

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) is a federal law that provides two basic rights to parents in regards to student records:

- 1. The right to inspect and review their child's education records
- 2. The right to prevent unauthorized persons from seeing the same records

The Commonwealth's student record regulations (603 CMR 23.00) are designed to ensure parents and students of confidentiality, inspection, amendment, and destruction of student records, and to assist school authorities in carrying out their responsibilities under state and federal law.

To request records, please send a written request to your child's school and/or to the Assistant Superintendent for Student Services, 110 Pleasant Street, Malden, MA and can be reached at 781-397-7245

Description

Student records consist of all information kept by the school and organized in a manner such that a student may be individually identified. Student records include both the Permanent Record (transcript) and a Temporary Record. The transcript shall contain the minimum data necessary to reflect a student's educational progress. This data shall be limited to the student's name, address and phone number; birth date; the name, address, and phone number of parent/guardian; course titles, grades (or the equivalent when grades are not applicable), course credit, grade level completed, and the year completed. A Temporary Record contains the majority of a student's information maintained by the school. This record may include information such as standardized test results, MCAS scores, extracurricular activities, and evaluations by teachers, counselors or other school staff.

Destruction of Records

Following a student's withdrawal, transfer, or graduation from MHS, the only document that will be kept on file in the Guidance Office will be the Transcript/ Permanent Record, which must be kept by the school system for at least sixty (60) years after students leave the system. Upon withdrawal, transfer, or graduation from MHS, students will be given notice at that time of their right to obtain their Temporary Record and that, should a student not obtain it, it will be destroyed by a specified date (which by law must be within seven (7) years of withdrawal, transfer, or graduation). Since there may be some information contained within the folder, such as a student's Health Record, which may be of value in the future, it is suggested that students obtain their Temporary Record and make and keep duplicate copies. If a student received any special education services while at MHS, they may obtain those parts of their Temporary Record from the special education office.

Access by Parents and Students

A parent with physical custody of a student under 18 years of age or a student who has entered the ninth grade or is at least 14 years old ("eligible student"), has the right to inspect and/or copy all portions of the student record upon request. The record must be made available to the parent or eligible student no later than ten days after the request, unless the parent or eligible student consents to a delay or unless the request is made by a non-custodial parent. A reasonable fee may be charged for the cost of copying the record. The parent and eligible student also have the right to amend the student record or to request deletion of certain information. Instruction on how to do this may be obtained from the Registrar's office. The parent and eligible student may also request to have parts of the record interpreted by qualified school personnel or may have the student record inspected or interpreted by a third party of their choice. Such third party shall present specific written consent of the eligible student or parent, prior to gaining access to the student record

Access Procedures for Non-Custodial Parents

State law mandates standard procedures for making student records available to a non-custodial parent. Under M.G.L., Chapter 71, Section 34H, a non-custodial parent is one who does not have physical custody of their child. Such parents must submit a written request to the school principal annually in order to obtain a copy and/or access to their child's record. For more information about making this type of request, contact the Assistant Superintendent for Student Services located at 110 Pleasant Street, Malden, MA, 781-397-7245

Access by Third Parties

With a few exceptions, information in a student's record will not be released to a third party without the written consent of the eligible student and/or a parent having physical custody of a student under 18 years of age. These exceptions are set forth in the federal statute "FERPA", 20 U.S.C., § 1232g and 34 CFR Part 99, and in the Massachusetts regulations, 603 CMR 23.00. In addition, the following information will be released as a routine matter unless a student or parent follows the objection process set forth at the end of this section.

• **Directory Information:** A student's name, address, telephone listing, date and place of birth, major field of study, dates of attendance, weight and height of members of athletic teams, class, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, degrees, honors and awards, and post high school plans.

• Recruiting information for the Armed Forces and Post-Secondary Educational Institutions: Upon request from military recruiters and/or representatives of post-secondary educational institutions, the Malden Public Schools will provide the name, address and telephone listing for all secondary students. If an eligible student and/or parent does not want Directory Information or Recruiting Information released, they must notify the MPS Welcome Center in writing no later than September 15 of the year in which they first enroll in MHS. Otherwise, said information will be released. A written objection received in accordance with this procedure shall be treated as continuing in effect during a student's enrollment in MHS until and unless the eligible student and/or parent notifies the Welcome Center in writing that the objection to release is removed.

Amendments to Records

The eligible student and their parent, or either one, has the right to add information or other relevant material to the record. They also have the right to request the deletion or amendment of any information in the record. The school Principal or their designee is required to make a decision regarding such a request which may be appealed first to the Superintendent and then to the School Committee.

Filing a Complaint

The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the [School] to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Student Privacy Policy Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

VISION OF A GRADUATE

MALDEN HIGH SCHOOL

GRADUATE



alden High School educates an inclusive and equitable community of diverse learners whom we are preparing to be Communicators, Collaborators, Critical Thinkers, Innovative Learners, Empowered Citizens, and Persistent Individuals. As such, MHS instructional practices present authentic and relevant experiences that are intellectually engaging, student-centered, inquiry-based, cognitively complex, process-oriented, and encourage productive struggle. Furthermore, these instructional practices encourage students to pursue their interests, leverage their strengths, and explore unfamiliar concepts that prepare students for life in our ever-changing modern world.

communicators who..



- · Listen actively
- · Speak and write with clarity
- Know their audience, understand their purpose, and choose precise language
- Use media thoughtfully/purposefully
- Engage in productive discussion

COLLABORATORS WHO...



- · Actively contribute [and compromise] to reach a common goal
- Take responsibility for themselves and their team
- · Give and receive feedback and revise accordingly
- Encourage and support each other · Value diverse strengths

Critical Thinkers Who...



- Ask questions
- Make connections between ideas
- · Apply logic and reasoning
- Evaluate and analyze information
- · Read insightfully
- Make decisions and arguments based on evidence
- Reflect on and critique ideas

INNOVATIVE LEARNERS WHO...



- Build on knowledge and apply to new situations
- Are curious and seek new knowledge and challenges
- Create to solve challenges
- · Make mistakes and persevere

ミュッシンドルリロ いてにはしい ジェラジ



- Are aware and knowledgeable of other
- · Are aware of and work to reduce implicit and explicit bias
- · Take initiative to make change
- · Are tolerant of others
- Show empathy
- · Understand media

PERSISTENT INDIVIDUALS WHO...



- Seek feedback to grow from it
- · Apply effort to continuously improve
- · Work persistently to reach goals
- · Embrace challenge with confidence
- Utilize time management
- · Are open to risk taking
- Seek independence

2025-26 SCHOOL CALENDAR

MALDEN PUBLIC SCHOOLS

2025-2026 CALENDAR - Dates Subject to Change

FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL (Grades 1-12): August 27

FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL (PreK & K): September 4

LAST DAY OF SCHOOL W/O SNOW DAYS: June 12

	AUGUST 2025 (<i>2 DAYS</i>)							
S	M T W T F S							
	25*	26*	27	28	29	30		

8/25: First Day for All Staff - No School for Students 8/26: Prof Dev Day - All Grades - No School for Students 8/27: First Day of School Grades 1-12 8/28: Kindergarten Orientation/Screening

8/29: No School - All Grades

	SEPTEMBER 2025 (21 DAYS)							
S	S M T W T F							
	4	2	3	4	5	6		
7	8	9	10	11	12	13		
14	15	16	17	18	19	20		
21	22	23	24	25	26	27		
28	29	30						

9/1: No School - Labor Day 9/2: Classes Resume 9/2 & 9/3: Kindergarten Orientation/Screening 9/4: First day of School for PreK and Kindergarten

	OCTOBER 2025 (<i>22 DAYS</i>)								
S	М	T	W	T	F	S			
			1	2	3	4			
5	6	7	8	9	10	11			
12	13	14	15	16	17	18			
19	20	21	22	23	24	25			
26	27	28	29	30	31				

10/1: 12:45 pm PD Early Dismissal PreK-12 10/13: No School - Indigenous People's Day

NOVEMBER 2025 (16 DAYS)							
S	M T W T F S						
2	3	4*	5	6	7	8	
9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
30							

11/4: Prof Dev Day - All Grades - No School for Students 11/11: No School - Veterans Day

11/26: 11:30 am Dismissal - All Schools 11/27-28: No School - Thanksgiving Break

	DECEMBER 2025 (17 DAYS)							
S	М	T	W	T	F	S		
	1	2	3	4	5	6		
7	8	9	10	11	12	13		
14	15	16	17	18	19	20		
21	22	23	24	25	26	27		
28	29	30	31					

12/3: 12:45 pm PD Early Dismissal PreK-12 12/24-1/2: No School for Students - Winter Break

	JANUARY 2026 (18 <i>DAYS</i>)							
S	М	T	W	T	F	S		
				4	2	3		
4	5	6	7	8	9	10		
11	12*	13	14	15	16	17		
18	19	20	21	22	23	24		
25	26	27	28	29	30	31		

1/1-1/2: No School - Winter Break

1/5: Classes Resume

1/12: Prof Dev Day - All Grades - No School for Students 1/19: No School - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

	FEBRUARY 2026 (15 DAYS)							
S	S M T W T F S							
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		

2/4: 12:45 pm PD Early Dismissal PreK-12 2/16-20: No School - February Break

MARCH 2026 (22 DAYS)								
S	М	T	W	T	F	S		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30	31						

3/4: 12:45 pm PD Early Dismissal PreK-12

	APRIL 2026 (17 DAYS)							
S	М	I	W	T	F	S		
			1	2	3	4		
5	6	7	8	9	10	11		
12	13	14	15	16	17	18		
19	20	21	22	23	24	25		
26	27	28	29	30				

4/20-24 No School - April Break

	MAY 2026 (20 DAYS)								
S	S M T W T F S								
					1	2			
3	4	5	6	7	8	9			
10	11	12	13	14	15	16			
17	18	19	20	21	22	23			
24	25	26	27	28	29	30			

5/6: 12:45 pm PD Early Dismissal PreK-12 5/25: No School - Memorial Day 5/27: Last Day of Classes for Graduating Seniors

JUNE 2026 (10 <i>DAYS</i>)							
S	М	T	W	T	F	S	
	1	2	3	4	5	6	
	8	9	10	11	12	13	
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	
21	22						
					U .		

6/7: Malden High School Graduation 6/12: Last Day of School w/o snow days (180 Days)

6/19: No School - Juneteenth 6/22: Tentative last day of school w/ 5 snow days (185 Days) Extenuating circumstances and/or inclement weather may necessitate changes to the calendar during the year. Visit Maldenps.org/calendar for current information.

Malden Public Schools proudly serves a multicultural and religiously diverse community. Although the schools are open, excused absence is available in observance of religious holidays. Students who miss school work because of an excused absence will be given time to complete assignments/tests by the educator.

DRAFT 2025-26 REPORT CARD SCHEDULE

Quarters Grades PK-8

	Term 1	Term 2	Term 3	Term 4	
Term Dates	Aug. 27 - Oct. 31, 2025 (45 days)	Nov. 3, 2025 – Jan. 23, 2026 (45 days)	Jan. 26 - April 3, 2026 (45 days)	April 6 - June 15, 2026 (45 days)	
Progress Reports Grading Window	September 29 - October 3, 2025	December 8 - 12, 2025	March 2 - 6, 2026	May 11 - May 15, 2026	
Distribute Progress Reports	October 7, 2025	December 16, 2025	March 10, 2026	May 19, 2026	
Report Card Grading Window	November 3 - 7, 2025	January 26-January 30, 2026	April 6 - 10, 2026	June 4 - 10, 2026	
Distribute Report Cards	November 12, 2025	February 3, 2026	April 14, 2026	June 12, 2026*	
PreK - K	'	t home: Feb. 3, 2026 nce: Feb. 9-13, 2026	Report Card sent home: June 9-12, 2026		

Notes: *Dates might change due to snow days.

Quarters Grades 9-12

	Term 1	Term 2	Term 3	Term 4 Grade 9-11	Term 4 Grade 12
Term Dates	Aug. 27 - Oct 31, 2025 (45 days)	Nov. 3, 2025 – Jan. 23, 2026 (45 days)	Jan. 26 - April 3, 2026 (45 days)	April 6 - June 15, 2026 (45 days)	April 3 - May 22, 2026 (31 days)
Progress Reports Grading Window	September 29 - October 3, 2025	December 8 - 12, 2025	March 2 - 6, 2026	May 11 - 15, 2026	May 4 - 8, 2026
Distribute Progress Reports	October 7, 2025	December 16, 2025	March 10, 2026	May 19, 2026	May 12, 2026
Report Card Grading Window	November 3 - 7, 2025	January 26 – January 30, 2026	April 6 - 10, 2026	June 4 - 10, 2026	May 20 - 22, 2026*
Distribute Report Cards	November 12, 2025	February 3, 2026	April 14, 2026	June 12, 2026*	May 26, 2026

Notes: *Dates might change due to snow days.

MPS Elementary Grading System: K-8

MPS K-4 Grading System						
Grade Band	Individual Performance for Overall Grade	Rating				
K-4	ES = Exceeds Standard The student exceeds the standards by independently applying and	ES = Exceeds Standard				
	utilizing concepts and skills. MS = Meets Standard The student is able to complete this task or exhibit this behavior independently or with limited teacher support.	MS = Meets Standards				
	PS = Progressing (or approaching) Standard The student is able to perform this task or exhibit this behavior consistently with teacher support and may at times show signs of independence.	PS = Progressing (or approaching) Standard				
	NM = Does not meet standard (needs improvement) The student needs significant teacher support in order to attempt to do this task or exhibit this behavior.	NM = Does not meet standard (needs improvement)				
	NA = Not addressed this quarter The standard was not addressed during instruction this quarter.	NA = Not addressed this quarter				

MPS 5-8 Grading System					
Grade Band	Letter Grade	Numeric Grades			
Grades 5-8	А	90-100			
	В	80-89			
	С	70-79			
	D	60-69			
	F	0-59			

Student Transportation

MBTA Student "Charlie Card"

The MBTA provides students 12 years of age with Charlie Cards (allowing students a discount) at the beginning of the school year. Students can get cards in the schools' Main Office. Students put their own money on the cards.

Pick-up/Drop-off Procedures

First drop off can be done once entering school grounds, please have students exit the right side of your vehicle closest to the sidewalk. Do not wait until your student enters school.

Please drop off student and move your vehicle without blocking other cars

During pick up please do not double park, block the pickup area, or leave your vehicle unattended. Please contact your student before pick up to make sure your student is going to be waiting for you at the pick up area. Please ask your student to enter the vehicle on the right side of the vehicle.

Please refrain from parking in or blocking the handicapped parking spots. Those spots are for those that have handicapped placards or license plates. They must be respected.

Please do not park or block any access points that need to be open for emergency vehicles, Fire Trucks, Ambulances, and Police need to be able to respond to emergencies in a timely manner.

Please do not block other cars in, or leave vehicles unattended blocking others in.

Please do not leave cars idling on school property.

Please remain patient during drop off and pick up, we have a lot of vehicles accessing a small area.

Please do not use your horn around the school, we have many students that are sensitive to loud noise and it's not polite.

Student IDs

All MHS students are issued an ID. IDs are required to purchase a school lunch. Replacements are \$5.00.

Non-Discrimination and Complaint Policies

Non-Discrimination

The Malden Public Schools has a commitment to maintaining an educational environment where bigotry and intolerance, including discrimination and/or harassment is prohibited on the basis of race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, age, ancestry, veteran status, genetic information, limited speaking ability, homelessness or any other class protected by the state or federal law in its educational programs, activities or employment policies. Discrimination, including harassment, is contrary to the mission of the Malden Public Schools and its commitment to equal opportunity in education.

It will be a violation for any student, district employee or third party based on a student's, employee's or third party's actual or perceived protected class status to: (1) harass a student, district employee or third party through conduct or communication (e.g., physical, verbal, graphic or written) or to (2) inflict, threaten to inflict or attempt to inflict violence; or to (3) discriminate against a student, District employee or third party.

This policy applies to all of the academic and nonacademic (for example, athletic and extracurricular) programs of the district and will be enforced before, during, or after school hours on all school property, including the school bus, school functions, or events held at other locations. The policy also applies to any off-campus conduct that causes or threatens to cause a substantial and material disruption at school, or interferes with the rights of students, employees or third parties to be free from a hostile school environment, taking into consideration the totality of the circumstances on and off campus. Any retaliation against an individual who has complained about discrimination, including harassment, or any retaliation against any individual who has cooperated with an investigation of a discrimination, harassment or retaliation complaint, is also unlawful and will not be tolerated.

The Malden Public Schools takes allegations of discrimination, including harassment, seriously and will respond promptly to complaints that are known or reasonably should be known by the Malden Public Schools. Where it is determined that conduct that violates the law and this policy has occurred, the Malden Public Schools will act promptly to eliminate the conduct and will impose corrective action as necessary, including disciplinary action where appropriate, which may include school-related discipline.

Student Complaints

Malden Public Schools expects that if a student has a problem, request, or grievance, he/she will refer it directly to a teacher, guidance counselor, assistant principal, principal, or other trusted adult depending on the nature of the issue.

Complaints : Reporting Complaints of Discrimination and Harassment

If any Malden Public Schools student, parent/caregivers, visitor or employee believes, in good faith, that he or she has been subjected to any other form of harassment or discrimination described above or who has witnessed or learns about the harassment or discrimination of another person in the school environment has a right to file a complaint with the Malden Public Schools. This may be done informally or formally

Teachers or other staff members who observe or receive reports of incidents of harassment or discrimination involving students shall report such incidents immediately to the student's Principal. Delays between the date of the alleged incident and the reporting date may make investigations more difficult. Individuals aware of harassment or discrimination involving any employee or if a Principal is the person alleged to be engaged in the discrimination/harassment shall report such incidents to the Civil Rights Coordinator, listed below, or to the Superintendent.

Please note that while these procedures relate to the Malden Public Schools' policy of promoting an educational setting free from discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment, as detailed further in this policy, these procedures are not designed nor intended to limit the Malden Public Schools' authority to discipline or take remedial action for conduct which the Malden Public Schools deems unacceptable.

District Contact

District Civil Rights Coordinator for Title VI (race, color, national origin); Title IX (sex); Section 504 (disability); Title II of the ADA (disability); Religion, Sexual Orientation, Gender Identity and Age is: Assistant Superintendent of Student Services. The Assistant Superintendent of Student Service is located at 110 Pleasant Street, Malden, Ma and can be reached at 781-397-7245.

Discrimination/Harassment Complaint Procedures

Where to File a Complaint

Any Malden Public School student, employee, or third party who believes that a Malden Public School student, employee, or third party has discriminated against or harassed them because of their race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age in admission to, access to, treatment in, or employment in its services, programs, or activities may file a complaint with the Office of Human Resources.

Contents of Complaints & Timeline for Filing

Complaints under this procedure must be filed within twenty (20) days of the alleged discrimination or harassment. Complaints filed after this 20 day period will be accepted, however, the investigation may be impacted due to the passage of time. Complaints may be submitted orally or in writing. The complainant may select another person to help with the filing of the complaint. Any responsible employee who receives an oral complaint will memorialize the allegations in writing and forward the written allegations to the Office of the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee by the following school day. The written complaint should include the following information:

- 1. The name and grade level (or address and telephone number if not a student or employee) of the complainant;
- 2. The name (and address and telephone number if not a student or employee) of the complainant's representative, if any;
- 3. The name(s) of the person(s) alleged to have committed or caused the discriminatory or harassing action, or event (respondent);
- 4. A description, in as much detail as possible, of the alleged discrimination or harassment;
- 5. The date(s), time(s), and location(s) of the alleged discrimination or harassment;

- 6. The names of all persons who have knowledge about the alleged discrimination or harassment (witnesses) as can be reasonably determined; and
- 7. A description, in as much detail as possible, of how the complainant wishes to see the matter resolved.

Investigations & Resolution of the Complaint

Complaints will be investigated promptly and resolved as quickly as possible. Due process procedures apply to issues of identification, evaluation, and placement under Section 504. Any person who alleges discrimination on the basis of a disability relative to the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of a person, who because of a disability is believed to need regular or special instruction and related aids or services, pursuant to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Massachusetts General Law chapter 71B, and/or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act may use the procedure outlined in the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Parents' Rights Brochure, rather than this procedure. Information on this alternative process may be obtained from the Assistant Superintendent for Student Services.

The Discrimination/Harassment Complaint Procedure applies to issues of disability discrimination and harassment. Respondents will be informed of the charges as soon as the grievance officer deems appropriate based upon the nature of the allegations, the investigation required, and the action contemplated, and in no case later than fifteen (15) school days following receipt of the complaint. The grievance officer will interview witnesses who are deemed to be necessary and appropriate to determine the facts relevant to the complaint, and will gather other pertinent information. Interviews of students will be conducted in such a way as to reflect the age and emotional condition of the student. The complainant(s) and respondent(s) shall have an equal opportunity to present witnesses and other evidence. Such interviews and gathering of information will be completed within fifteen (15) school days of the receipt of the complaint.

Within twenty (20) school days of receiving the complaint, the grievance officer will meet with the complainant and/or his/her representative and the respondent and/or his/her representative to review information gathered and, if appropriate, to propose a resolution designed to stop the discrimination or harassment, prevent its recurrence and to correct its effect.

Within ten (10) school days of meeting with the complainant and/or his/her representative and the respondent and/or his/her representative, the grievance officer will provide written disposition of the complaint to the complainant and/or his/her representative and to the respondent(s) and/or his/her representative, including a statement regarding whether the complaint was found to be credible and whether discrimination was found to have occurred. Where the grievance officer finds that discrimination has occurred, Malden Public Schools will take steps that are reasonably calculated to end discrimination that has been found; prevent recurrence of any discrimination, and correct its discriminatory effects on the complainant and others, if appropriate. The grievance officer will contact the complainant within 10 school days following conclusion of the investigation to assess whether there has been on-going discrimination or retaliation, and to determine whether additional supportive measures are needed. If the grievance officer determines that additional supportive measures are needed, he or she shall offer such measures to the complainant within fifteen school days following conclusion of the investigation.

Notwithstanding the above, it is understood that in the event a resolution contemplated by the grievance officer involves disciplinary action against an individual, the complainant will not be informed of such disciplinary action, unless it directly involves the complainant (e.g., a directive to "stay away" from the complainant, as might occur as a result of a complaint of harassment). Any disciplinary action imposed upon an individual will be subject to applicable procedural requirements. All the timelines indicated above will be

implemented as specified, unless the nature of the investigation or exigent circumstances prevent such implementation in which case the matter will be completed as quickly as practicable. If the timelines specified above are not met, the reason(s) for not meeting them must be clearly documented.

Confidentiality of complainants/respondents and witnesses will be maintained, to the extent consistent with the obligations of the Malden Public Schools relating to the investigation of complaints and the due process rights of individuals affected.

Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation against someone because they have filed a complaint under this procedure is strictly forbidden. Retaliation against someone who has participated in an investigation is strictly prohibited. Malden Public Schools will take appropriate steps as necessary to prevent retaliation. Acts of retaliation may result in disciplinary action, up to and including suspension or expulsion/discharge.

Upon request, the grievance officer will provide the complainant with the names and addresses of those state and federal agencies which handle discrimination and harassment matters.

Title IX Notice & Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 states: No person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 20 USC §1681.

Sexual harassment, including sexual violence, is unlawful sex discrimination. As required by Title IX and in compliance with Title IX, the Malden Public Schools does not discriminate on the basis of sex in its education programs or activities including in its admission or employment practices. Inquiries regarding the application of Title IX to the Malden Public Schools education program and activities are directed to the Title IX Coordinator.

The following conduct constitutes sexual harassment:

- A school employee conditioning an educational benefit or service upon a person's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct (often called "quid pro quo" harassment);
- Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively
 offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the school's education program or
 activity; or
- Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking (as those offenses are defined in the Clery Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1092(f), and the Violence Against Women Act, 34 U.S.C. § 12291(a)).

How to Report Sex Discrimination, including Sexual Harassment

Any person may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, to the Title IX Coordinator, or by any other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person's verbal or written report. Reports may be made at any time by using the telephone number or electronic mail address, or by mail to the office address, listed for the Title IX Coordinator.

Pamela MacDonald, Title IX Coordinator Assistant Superintendent for Student Services Malden Public Schools 110 Pleasant Street Malden, MA 781-397-7245 or pmacdonald@maldenps.org

How to File a Formal Complaint for Sexual Harassment

- A complainant may file a formal complaint with the Title IX Coordinator by mail, email, telephone or in person. The Title IX Coordinator may also initiate a formal complaint.
- Complainant means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.
- Respondent means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.
- Formal complaint means a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that Malden Public Schools investigate the allegation.

How MPS will Respond to a Complaint

The Title IX Coordinator will promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures.

Supportive measures means non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent. Supportive measures are offered whether or not the complainant files a formal complaint and are designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the educational environment, or deter sexual harassment. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the effective implementation of supportive measures.

The Title IX Coordinator will consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal complaint, and explain to the complainant the process for filing a formal complaint. The Title IX Coordinator must treat complainants and respondents equitably and offer supportive measures to the complainant and respondent.

The Malden Public Schools may remove a respondent from school or an activity on an emergency basis, provided that an individualized safety and risk analysis determines that there is an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual. Respondents removed on an emergency basis will receive notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal.

This provision may not modify any rights for students with disabilities.

Complaint Process

In response to a formal complaint, Malden Public Schools will adhere to the following grievance process.

1. **Written Notice:** Upon receipt of a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator will provide written notice to the parties who are known. The written notice shall include:

- a. Notice of the complaint process, including notice of informal resolution process;
- b. Notice of the allegations that includes sufficient details known at the time and with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial interview;
- c. Notice that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process.
- d. Notice that the parties may have an advisor of their choice and may inspect and review evidence; and
- e. Notice that the Malden Public Schools code of conduct prohibits knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.

If any new allegations arise during the grievance process, the Title IX Coordinator will provide written notice of the additional allegations to the parties whose identities are known.

- 2. **Investigation:** The Malden Public Schools will investigate the allegations in the formal complaint. MPS will use trained personnel to objectively evaluate all relevant evidence without prejudgment of the facts at issue and free from conflicts of interest or bias for or against either party.
 - a. The MPS may dismiss the formal complaint if:
 - The conduct alleged would not constitute sexual harassment even if proved, did not occur in a Malden Public Schools' education program or activity, or did not occur in the United States.
 - The complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the complainant would like to withdraw the formal complaint of any of the allegations in the formal complaint, or if the respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the MPS; or specific circumstances prevent the recipient from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint.
 - b. Upon a dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator will promptly send written notice for the dismissal and reason(s) therefore simultaneously to the parties.
 - c. When investigating a formal complaint and throughout the grievance process, the MPS will:
 - Apply a presumption of innocence, and ensure that the burden of proof and the burden of gathering evidence rests on the MPS and not on the parties;
 - Provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence;
 - Not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather and present relevant evidence;
 - Protect parties' privacy by requiring a party's written consent before using the party's medical, psychological or similar treatment records during the grievance process;
 - Provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney;
 - Provide, to a party whose participation is invited or expected, written notice of the date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all hearings, investigative interviews, or other meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate;
 - Provide both parties an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised in a formal complaint;
 - Prior to the completion of an investigative report, send to each party and the party's advisor the evidence subject to inspection and review and provide the parties at least 10 days to submit a written response, which the investigator will consider prior to completion of the investigative report.

• Create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence for their review and written response.

The investigator shall strive to complete investigations within thirty (30) school days of the filing of the formal complaint. Although the District's goal is to complete investigations generally within thirty (30) school days, the time may be extended for good cause upon written notice to the complainant and respondent. Additionally, the timeline for investigation may be suspended during any informal resolution procedure or meeting.

- **3. Determination regarding responsibility:** The decision-maker, who shall not be the investigator or the Title IX Coordinator, will provide each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party. Complainants may not be asked inappropriate questions about prior sexual history. The decision-maker(s) must explain to the party proposing the questions any decision to exclude a question as not relevant.
 - The decision-maker must issue a written determination regarding responsibility. To reach this
 determination, the decision maker shall apply a preponderance of the evidence standard.
 Preponderance of the evidence means that it is more likely than not that the alleged conduct
 occurred.
 - The decision maker shall review all of the evidence and issue a written determination within fifteen (15) school days of receipt of the matter from the investigator, absent extenuating circumstances.
 - The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for effective implementation of any remedies.
- **4. Appeals:** Either party may appeal the determination regarding responsibility (or from a dismissal) on the following grounds:
 - Procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;
 - New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and
 - The Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or bias for or against the complainant or respondents generally or individually that affected the outcome of the matter.
 - Appeals must be submitted to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5) school days of receipt of the
 written determination and contain a written statement in support or challenge of the outcome. In
 the event of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the other party in writing when an appeal
 is filed and implement appeal procedures equally for both parties.
- **5. Informal Resolution:** An informal resolution process is available when a formal complaint is filed. Informal resolution process is available without a full investigation and nothing in the informal process shall preclude the parties from resuming a formal complaint process. Participation is voluntary and written consent is required. An informal resolution process is not permitted to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student.
- **6. Record Keeping:** The Malden Public Schools will maintain records regarding sexual harassment reports and complaints for a period of seven years.

Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation is prohibited against any individual, including complainants, respondents, and witnesses for reporting sexual harassment, participating (or refusing to participate) in any investigation/grievance process. Individuals may report retaliation to the Title IX Coordinator who will investigate and take measures to protect individuals from retaliation.

Complaints of Discrimination and/or Harassment on the basis of sex may also be reported to:

The Office for Civil Rights, US Department of Education 5 Post Office Square, 8th Floor Boston, MA 02109-3921

Telephone: 617-289-0111, FAX: 617-289-0150

Electronic Mail: OCR.Boston@ed.gov

HOMELESS STUDENTS

Enrollment Rights & Services

As required by law, Malden Public Schools will work with homeless children and youth and unaccompanied youth (collectively, "homeless students") as well as their families or legal guardians to provide stability in school attendance and other services. Special attention will be given to ensuring the enrollment and attendance of homeless students not currently attending school. Homeless students will be provided district services for which they are eligible, including Head Start and comparable preschool programs, Title I, similar state programs, special education, bilingual education, vocational and technical education programs, gifted and talented programs and school nutrition programs, summer programming and extracurricular activities.

Malden's Homeless Liaison is: Emily Jordin ejodoin@maldenps.org

Definition

Homeless students are defined as lacking a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence, including:

- 1. Sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or similar reason;
- 2. Living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations;
- 3. Living in emergency or transitional shelters;
- 4. Being abandoned in hospitals;
- 5. Living in public or private places not designed for or ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings;
- 6. Living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, transportation stations or similar settings; and
- 7. Migratory children living in conditions described in the previous examples.

Students Remaining in Schools of Origin

It is presumed to be in the best interest of homeless students to remain in their schools of origin i.e. the school that the student was attending at the time he or she became homeless, or the last school the student attended prior to becoming homeless. Homeless students may continue to attend their school of origin for as long as they remain homeless or until the end of the academic year in which they obtain permanent housing. For homeless students who complete the final grade level served by the school of origin, the term "school of origin" shall also include the receiving school in the same school district educating students at the next grade level.

Homeless students are entitled to transportation comparable to that provided for all other students attending school in the Malden Public Schools. MPS will transport students who are sheltered or temporarily residing within Malden to the students' school or origin. For homeless students attending a school of origin located outside of the district in which the student is sheltered or temporarily residing, the

District in which the school of origin is located will coordinate with the District in which the student is sheltered or temporarily residing to provide the transportation services necessary for the student, and these districts will divide the cost equally. Formerly homeless students who find permanent housing mid-school year will continue to receive transportation services until the end of the school year.

Students Enrolling in District Where Sheltered or Temporarily Residing

Parents or guardians may elect to enroll homeless students in the school district in which the student is sheltered or temporarily residing, rather than having the student remain in the school of origin. Enrollment changes for homeless students should take place immediately.

If homeless students are unable to provide written proof of their shelter or temporary residence in the district, the homeless liaison will work with the family seeking enrollment to determine homelessness. Information regarding a homeless student's living arrangement shall be considered a student education record, and not directory information. Records containing information about the homeless student's living arrangement may not be disclosed without the consent of the parent or satisfaction of another student-privacy related exemption.

If the student does not have immediate access to immunization records, the student shall be permitted to enroll under a personal exception. Students and families should be encouraged to obtain current immunization records or immunizations as soon as possible, and the district liaison is directed to assist. Emergency contact information is required at the time of enrollment consistent with district policies, including compliance with the state's address confidentiality program when necessary. After enrollment, the district will immediately request available records from the student's previous school.

Attendance rights by living in attendance areas, other student assignment policies, or intra and inter-district choice options are available to homeless families on the same terms as families who reside in the district. Accordingly, the district will provide transportation services to school in a manner comparable to the transportation provided for all other students in the district.

Dispute Resolution

If the MPS disagrees with a parent or guardian's decision to keep a student enrolled in the school of origin and considers enrollment in the district where the student is sheltered or temporarily residing to be in the student's best interest, the district will explain to the parent, in writing and in a language the parent can understand, the rationale for its determination and provide parent with written notice of their rights to appeal the district's determination to the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. During the pendency of any such appeal, the student should remain enrolled in the school selected by the parent or guardian, receiving transportation to school and access to other available services and programs.

The Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Advisory on Homeless Education Assistance contains additional information about educating homeless students and the appeal process. This advisory is available at the following link: http://www.doe.mass.edu/mv/haa/mckinnev-vento.docx

Homeless Liaison

The Superintendent designates an appropriate staff person to be the district's liaison for homeless students and their families. The district's liaison for homeless students and their families coordinates with local social

service agencies that provide services to homeless children and youths and their families; other school districts on issues of transportation and records transfers; and state and local housing agencies responsible for comprehensive housing affordability strategies. This coordination includes providing public notice of the educational rights of homeless students in locations such as schools, family shelters and soup kitchens. The district's liaison will also review and recommend amendments to district policies that may act as barriers to the enrollment of homeless students. The liaison shall ensure district staff receive professional development and other support on issues involving homeless students.

Malden's liaison is: Emily Jordin ejodoin@maldenps.org

Educational Stability for Children in Foster Care

The purpose of this policy is to ensure the educational stability of students in foster care. Educational stability has a lasting impact on students' academic achievement and wellbeing, and the School Committee is committed to supporting all efforts to ensure that students in foster care have equal access to high-quality, stable educational experiences from preschool (if offered) through high school graduation.

Irrespective of the location of a foster care placement, students in foster care will continue to attend their school of origin, unless after a collaborative decision-making process, it is determined to be in the student's best interest to enroll in and attend school in the district in which the student resides in foster care.

Enrollment of students in the District where they reside in foster care will take place immediately upon such a determination.

The District has designated a point of contact for students in foster care. The District and the point of contact will collaborate with DCF to ensure that students can access transportation and the other services to which they may be entitled.

Best Interest Determination

Decisions about whether a student in foster care should continue to attend the school of origin should be made collaboratively by DCF, the student (as appropriate), the student's family and/or foster family (or, if different, the person authorized to make educational decisions on behalf of the student), the school and district of origin, and (when appropriate) the local district where the student is placed. Best interest determinations should focus on the needs of each individual student to account for unique factors about the student and his or her foster care placement. Every effort should be made to reach agreement regarding the appropriate school placement of a student in foster care; however, DCF will finalize the best interest determination if the relevant parties cannot agree on the best school for the student to attend.

MPS can seek review of DCF's decision by utilizing a Foster Care School Selection Dispute Resolution Process established by DESE and DCF. Decisions made through this process are not subject to review. To the extent feasible and appropriate, the District will ensure that a child remains in his or her school of origin while the disputes are being resolved to minimize disruptions and reduce the number of moves between schools.

Transportation

The district of origin must collaborate with DCF on how transportation will be arranged and provided to ensure that students in foster care who need transportation to remain in their school of origin will receive such transportation while they are in foster care.

Transportation options may include using Title I funds, establishing regional collaborations among districts, coordinating with existing routes for transportation, seeking help from foster parent(s), etc. Absent other agreements between the district and DCF, the district of origin is responsible for providing transportation to and from the school of origin.

Immediate Enrollment

If it is in the best interest of a student in foster care to leave the school of origin, the student must be immediately enrolled in the district in which he or she resides in foster care. During enrollment of students in foster care, DCF representatives will present the District with a form indicating that the student is in foster care, along with a state-agency identification badge.

If the student does not have immediate access to immunization records, the student shall be permitted to enroll under a personal exception. Students and families should be encouraged to obtain current immunization records or immunizations as soon as possible, and the district liaison is directed to assist. Emergency contact information is required at the time of enrollment consistent with district policies, including compliance with the state's address confidentiality program when necessary. After enrollment, the district will immediately request available records from the student's previous school.

Attendance rights by living in attendance areas, other student assignment policies, or intra and inter-district choice options are available to students in foster care (homeless families) on the same terms as families who reside in the district. Accordingly, the district will provide transportation services to school in a manner comparable to the transportation provided for all other students in the district.

Educational Opportunities for Military Children

To facilitate the placement, enrollment, graduation, data collection and provision of special services for students transferring into or out of the MPS because of their parents or guardians being on active duty in the U.S. Armed Services, MPS supports and will implement its responsibilities as outlined in the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children. The District believes it is appropriate to remove barriers to educational success imposed on children of military families resulting from frequent moves required by parents' or guardians' military deployment.

Definitions

- Children of military families: means School aged children, enrolled in kindergarten through 12th grade, in the household of an active duty member of the uniformed service of the United States, including members of the National Guard and Reserve serving on active duty.
- **Deployment:** The period one month before the service members' departure from their home station on military orders through six months after return to their home station.
- Education(al) records: Official records, files, and data directly related to a student and maintained by the school including, but not limited to, records encompassing all the material kept in the student's cumulative folder.
- Eligible students are children of military families as well as the children of veterans who have been severely injured or medically discharged, and children of active duty personnel who died on active duty. Children of retired active duty personnel are also eligible to receive services for one year following the discharge due to severe injury, or the retirement or death of an active military parent. The Compact does not apply to children of inactive Guard or Reserves, veterans and retired personnel not included above or U.S. Department of Defense personnel and other federal civil service employees and contract employees.

District's Responsibilities to Eligible Military Children

- Sending schools must send either official or unofficial records with the moving students and District receiving schools must use those records for immediate enrollment and educational placement.
- Upon enrollment of an eligible student, the receiving school must request official records and the sending schools shall respond within 10 days with the records.
- Immunization requirements of the District may be met within 30 days from the date of enrollment (or be in progress).
- Receiving schools must initially honor placement of students in all courses from the sending school. These include, but are not limited to, Honors, International Baccalaureate, Advanced Placement, vocational-technical, and career pathway courses if those courses are offered in the receiving school and space is available. The receiving schools must also initially honor placement of like programs to those of the student in the sending state, including, but not limited to, Gifted and Talented programs, and English as a Second Language programs. Receiving schools are not precluded from performing subsequent evaluation to ensure the appropriate placement and continued enrollment of the student in courses and programs.
- In compliance with federal law, the District will assume financial and programmatic responsibility for the special education program of students with existing IEP's drafted in other states.
- As appropriate, the District will exercise the right to waive prerequisites for all courses and programs, while also maintaining its right to re-evaluate the student to ensure continued enrollment, also as deemed appropriate.
- Students of active duty personnel shall have additional excused absences, as necessary, for visitations relative to leave or deployment.
- An eligible student living with a noncustodial parent or other person standing in loco parentis shall be
 permitted to continue to attend the school in which he or she was enrolled while living with the
 custodial parent or guardian, without any tuition fee imposed.
- The District high school will accept exit or end-of-year exams required from the sending state, national norm-referenced tests, or alternate testing instead of testing requirements for graduation in the District (receiving state.) If this is not possible, the alternative provision of the Interstate Compact shall be followed to facilitate the on-time graduation of the student in accordance with Compact provisions.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Academic, Social, & Civic Expectations

We strive for academic excellence, and therefore we expect students to:

- Read critically for understanding.
- Listen critically for understanding.
- Write for a variety of purposes.
- Communicate clearly through speaking.
- Apply critical thinking skills for reasoning and problem-solving.
- Utilize technology to conduct research, to support critical thinking, and to present information.
- Work collaboratively with peers and staff.
- Develop personal interests and goals within a course of study.

We expect every student at Malden Public Schools to:

- Exhibit responsible, respectful, and appropriate personal behavior.
- Demonstrate teamwork and cooperation in their school and in their extended community.
- Make informed, healthful decisions in and out of school.
- Demonstrate respect for others in their school and in their extended community.
- Value and respect school and community property.
- Exercise the rights and responsibilities of citizenship in a democracy.

Rationale for the Code of Conduct

While attending school during regular hours or during school-sponsored activities, students are expected to follow these basic rules, procedures, and expectations:

- 1. Students' first priority at school is to learn.
- 2. Avoid distractions that interfere with or are counter-intuitive to that mission.
- **3.** Be in the assigned place with appropriate materials, ready to work at the designated time that class begins.
- **4.** Keep hands, feet, and objects to yourself and never intentionally harm another student.
- **5.** Use school-appropriate language and behavior at all times while maintaining friendly and courteous behavior.
- **6.** Be polite and <u>respectful</u> to everyone, including students, teachers, administrators, support staff, and visitors.
- 7. Follow individual teacher instructions, class rules, and expectations at all times.
- **8.** <u>Do not be a bully.</u> If you see someone being bullied, intervene by telling them to stop or immediately report it to school personnel.
- **9.** Do not become a distraction for others. Give every other student the opportunity to maximize their potential. Encourage your fellow students. Never tear them down.

- **10.** School attendance and participation in class are an essential part of the educational process. Regular <u>attendance at school</u> is necessary for student success. Furthermore, it allows students to achieve the maximum possible benefits from their educational experience. All students are encouraged to be present and prompt. School attendance is the responsibility of both parents and students.
- 11. Represent yourself in a manner that you will be proud of in 10 years. You only get one opportunity to get life right. Take advantage of the opportunities you have at school. They will help you be successful throughout your life.

Our Code of Conduct Philosophy

We, at the Malden Public Schools, embrace all individuals and groups in our community and their roles in society. Malden Public Schools Code of Conduct is aligned with its Equity Mission and Goal. Malden is committed to interrupting inequitable practices, examining biases, and prioritizing the creation of and maintenance of inclusive multicultural school environments for students and adults No discrimination or harassment of individuals or groups on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, citizenship status, disability, age, genetic information, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, or military service will occur in any educational program, activity, or employment.

The Malden Public Schools Code of Conduct is intended to be preventative and not punitive; and is based on the idea and principle of positive responses (e.g., interventions and building of skills).

The Code of Conduct is intended to address the root causes of inappropriate behavior, resolving conflict, meeting students' needs, and keeping our students in class and in school. We acknowledge and understand that students may, at times, experience emotional and/or physical stressors that negatively impact their behavior. During these times, students are encouraged to share with a trusted adult. Staff are committed to supporting each student so they are fully able to participate in school every day. We are also committed to developmentally appropriate behavioral interventions.

The Malden Public Schools Code of Conduct was developed in order to create a safe learning environment for all schools, to consistently apply principles of restorative justice and foster the mission and vision of the Malden Public Schools. The Mission and Vision of MPS is as follows; Malden Public Schools, in partnership with families and our diverse community, is committed to providing a welcoming and inclusive environment for all students to cultivate a lifelong joy of learning, achieve their academic potential, and engage as compassionate global citizens. Malden Public Schools students will develop the skills, knowledge, and character necessary to become informed, compassionate, and engaged members of a diverse local community.

The Code of Conduct is based upon the State laws, rules, regulations, and district's policies and expectations, that seek to allow access to education for all while protecting the due process rights of the individual. Discipline, as defined by the Code, must have the qualities of understanding, fairness, flexibility and consistency. It is the responsibility of the school personnel, students, parents/guardians/caregivers, and the community to contribute to a school atmosphere which promotes a safe, healthy, and supportive whole-school environment that is conducive to learning. Preventive and positive discipline is a shared responsibility for students, administrators, teachers, parents/guardians, and the community.

At Malden Public Schools, we believe that students learn best and have the most meaningful access to their education when caregivers, educators, staff, administrators, and students work together

with shared responsibility in creating and sustaining safe, welcoming, inclusive, and consistent learning environments in which all members of the school community are valued.

Rights & Responsibilities

Guidelines for Student Rights & Responsibilities

The School Committee is legally responsible for the establishment of school policy, and every effort should be extended to include in the formulation of school policy consideration for the developing maturity of the student. Concomitant responsibilities flow from the exercise of rights and privileges. Tantamount among these are: (a) respect for oneself; (b) respect for others and their rights; (c) respect for individual dignity; (d) respect for legally constituted authority and legal responsibility of those in authority.

All rules and regulations to maintain the process of education must be common knowledge. Orientation programs and free student handbooks provide this information in clear and understandable language. Any changes will be widely publicized in print in both school and community media, and no regulation will be summarily drafted and enforced. The School Committee, Professional Staff, and Student Government will work cooperatively within the limitations prescribed by law in the establishment of these regulations. The amending, appeal, and enforcement of these rules will be clearly defined and made available to all interested and affected parties. Students must be free to establish and encouraged to participate in Student Government that provides all students, through a representative system, a voice in school affairs. Students must pass four courses to hold office in Student Government.

Schools are for education and students are involved in the educational process in their schools. Professional staff will solicit student suggestions and recommendations concerning curricular offerings. Curriculum offerings in schools strive to meet the needs and interests of all students. A committee of students and professional staff is formed to plan and organize school assembly programs. Suggestions from non-committee members are encouraged and considered. Such assemblies are an important part of the total instructional program, and topics or speakers of contemporary interest to students will be encouraged whenever possible. In cases of controversial topics or speakers, presentations will be balanced in terms of existing major points of view.

Freedom of speech is guaranteed to all citizens, and students must be allowed to exercise their constitutionally protected rights of free speech, petition, and assembly as long as they do not interfere with the educational process.

Materials presented to students are relevant to the course and appropriate to the maturity level and intellectual ability of the student. Students have the opportunity to investigate different views related to topics and materials introduced or presented. Teachers strive to promote tolerance for the views and opinions of others and for the rights of individuals to form and hold differing views and opinions. The teacher is responsible to permit the expression of the views and opinions of others and encourage students to examine, analyze, evaluate, and synthesize all available information about such topics and materials.

The school's newspaper, yearbook, literary magazine, and other publications, should be guaranteed the right of freedom of the press, subject to restrictions of existing laws including, but not limited to, libel and obscenity. As learning experiences within the schools, qualified advisors seek the highest publication standards. Other non-school sponsored student publications are subjected to locally determined procedures for distribution on school premises.

Students are allowed the use of school facilities for extracurricular activities and are encouraged to participate in these, including clubs, recreational events, and other such related activities.

These activities must be scheduled in keeping with normal School Committee regulations and provide for supervision according to school rules.

Students have a right to an education and the equality of educational opportunity.. Disciplinary actions of administrators and teachers should be fair and consistent in all cases and resorted to only when there are no other adequate options.

In cases of suspension, notification of parents or guardians, the District follows a prescribed procedure, set out under state laws and regulations, depending on the offense and length of the suspension. The District will publish a clearly defined procedure for the consideration of student problems and the processing of student complaints. Students are guaranteed the right of Due Process.

District Commitments

- Each situation involving discipline may be complex with underlying factors that require staff to understand the function of students' behaviors;
- Students, parents, and guardians have a right to be active participants in in the disciplinary process;
- Those involved with the disciplinary decision-making process should consider mitigating circumstances and alternatives to suspension; and
- There is an undeniable negative impact on student engagement and graduation rates when exclusionary practices have been used.

School & Staff Responsibilities

- Promote cultural, linguistic, ethnic, racial, and gender equity in our educational system;
- Seek out, attend, and engage in professional development opportunities that promote antiracist practices and enhance instructional skills and practices and de-escalation strategies;
- Examine their own implicit bias, work from a culturally-responsive and trauma-informed lens that utilize verbal de-escalation skills;
- Collaborate with students in creating healthy, safe, supportive, culturally-responsive classrooms and school environments;
- Advocate for the educational, cultural, social, and emotional needs of students.
- Hold all students to high expectations and provide culturally-responsive, quality and
 effective social emotional and academic instruction where students are engaged and invited
 to contribute to learning;
- Provide culturally-appropriate resources and support for students, parents, guardians, and staff:
- Create opportunities for student voices to be heard and influence changes in course content and practice;

- Know, care for, and establish positive relationships with students;
- Assess, enhance, model and explicitly teach social, emotional, and behavioral skills to students;
- Understand the purpose of discipline is to support positive behavior change and not to exclude or punish;
- Engage early on with students, parents/guardians, community-based organizations, and other staff to identify alternative disciplinary responses;
- Use a variety of ways to support student behavior once it has occurred, while minimizing the
 use of exclusionary practices and encouraging the resolution of problems within the school
 setting;
- Implement disciplinary responses that are least disruptive to the student-school relationship, while also maximizing instructional time; and
- Be responsible for teaching and modeling accountability, repairing and restoring relationships with students, and ensuring fair and transparent responses to practices.

Student Rights

- As a member of the school community, students have the right to:
- A safe and welcoming school and classroom based on co-created expectations that promote identity safety and celebrate you being your authentic self;
- A quality education with high expectations and appropriate support that includes equitable access to culturally-responsive content, high-quality instruction, services, resources, and extracurricular activities;
- Be treated with respect and dignity;
- Experience visibility and representation of your culture in your school's staff and throughout the curriculum;
- Be listened to and have your voice heard;
- Feel a sense of community, like you belong, and are cared for at school;
- Have your parents and guardians involved in efforts to support you in meeting expectations and acquiring your education;
- Be given the opportunity to learn from mistakes and be supported to make desired changes as identified by you, your parent and guardian and school staff;
- Choose to have you and your parent/ guardian be involved with your school and larger learning community;
- Stay informed in your identified home language;
- Be a part of an anti-racist education system with a clear pathway for reporting racist activity without retaliation (for more information on how to report incidents, please contact your school leader);

- Culturally- appropriate support, particularly when racist incidents occur that have the potential to interfere with your right to feel safe and learn;
- Ask for a parent/guardian to be part of any conversation that is in response to a disciplinary incident at school:
- Continued access to activities and education, while school-wide information is being gathered about a disciplinary incident;
- Due process that complies with Massachusetts state laws and regulations, as well as federal law, when facing possible suspension.

Student Responsibilities

- As a member of the school community, you should take personal responsibility to:
- Share with a trusted adult when you are experiencing emotional and/or physical stressors for the purpose of obtaining culturally- appropriate resources or support;
- Ask for help with meeting your educational, cultural, social, and emotional needs;
- Engage in mutually respectful dialogue with staff and other students;
- Attend school and be prepared for classes to the best of your ability;
- Contribute to a safe and welcoming environment;
- Respect and be mindful of the rights of others;
- Follow reasonable requests from school staff;
- Respect the property of others and the school.
- When students do not follow these responsibilities, they may experience a disciplinary response.

Parent/Caregiver Responsibilities

As a member of the school community, you should take personal responsibility to

- Keep informed about their students' behavior and achievement at school
- Become familiar with the Code of Conduct
- Instill respect for all school staff and students and property
- Support school rules
- Consult the school principal/counselor/teacher when issues arise
- Work with school personnel to implement appropriate consequences and/or interventions when a child violates the Code of Conduct
- Ensure that children attend school regularly and monitor that they arrive on time each day
- Communicate with school personnel about their child including attending school conferences

Approaches to Safe & Supportive Schools

There are a variety of approaches to promote safe and supportive schools. Tiered interventions are provided by departments across Malden Public Schools. MPS has adopted school-wide positive and preventative approaches as outlined in the Massachusetts tiered system of support (MTSS) and (PBIS) positive behavioral interventions and supports.

Promoting Positive Student Behavior

Each school is expected to promote a positive school culture and climate that provides students with a supportive environment to grow both socially and academically. Schools are expected to take a proactive role in nurturing students' social-emotional development and behavior by providing them with a range of positive behavioral supports.

Effective social emotional learning helps students develop fundamental skills for life effectiveness, including: self-awareness, self-regulation, and establishing positive support. Such skills help prevent negative behaviors and the disciplinary consequences that result when students do not comply with behavioral standards.

School staff members are also responsible for addressing inappropriate student behaviors which disrupt learning.

Administrators, teachers, counselors and other school staff are expected to engage all students in intervention and prevention strategies that address a student's behavioral issues and discuss these strategies with the student and his/her parent(s).

Discipline / Student Conduct

Student Conduct

Students are expected to conduct themselves in a manner consistent with school rules and regulations to the end that a positive learning atmosphere be established. Among other things, student conduct shall reflect care and respect for all other members of the school community.

Student Discipline

Violations of the code of conduct will subject a student to disciplinary action up to and including mediation, detention, suspension, or expulsion. The Principal or designee has the authority to impose consequences when a student violates the student Code of Conduct.

Massachusetts General Law chapter 71, sections 37H and 37H ½: Certain breaches of conduct are so serious that the Principal may long term suspend or expel a student under the provisions of Massachusetts General Law chapter 71, sections 37H and 37H ½. These include:

- Possession of a dangerous weapon while on school grounds or at a school-sponsored event
- Possession of a controlled substance while on school grounds or at a school-sponsored event
- An assault on a School Administrator, teacher, teacher's aide, or other staff person.
- A felony charge or conviction

Massachusetts General Law chapter 71, section 37H 1: Principals may suspend students for other breaches of conduct under the provisions of Massachusetts General Law chapter 71, section 37H 1/4 and 603 Code of Massachusetts Regulations 53.00. In every case of student misconduct for which suspension may be imposed under MGL c. 71, §37H 1/4, a principal, headmaster, superintendent or other person acting as a decision-maker at a student meeting or hearing shall first consider ways to re-engage the student in learning and shall not use suspension from school as a consequence until alternative remedies have been tried and documented, except as follows: (1) where said decision-maker documents specific reasons why alternative remedies are unsuitable or counterproductive; or (2) where the student's continued presence in school would pose a specific, documentable concern about the infliction of serious bodily injury or other serious harm to another person while in school. Alternative remedies may include, but are not limited to, the use of evidence-based strategies and programs such as mediation, conflict resolution, restorative justice, and collaborative problem solving.

Alternatives to Suspension:

We believe that students can refocus their energy and with support, regenerate their positive attitude towards others and themselves. Therefore, below are the restorative tiered alternative actions that administrators can try to implement before removing students from school.

- Code 150 Community service: The student is assigned to perform community service
- Code 180 Confiscation / Taking away an item(s) defined as prohibited by school or district policy
- Code 190 Conflict resolution or anger management services mandated: The student is required to participate in conflict resolution or anger management counseling or classes.
- Code 230 Detention: The student is assigned to before- or after-school detention or detention at lunch after consulting with caregivers
- Code 290 Letter of apology: The student is required to submit a formal letter of apology
- Code 300 Loss of privileges: The student lost a privilege (e.g., recess, field trips, games, etc)
- Code 330 Restitution: The student is required to make restitution for the damages caused by the incident.
- Code 340 Saturday school: The student is assigned to attend Saturday school.
- Code 350 School probation: The student is restricted from school, school, and district functions. (This happens anytime a student is suspended from school)
- Code 360 Substance abuse counseling mandated: The student is required to participate in substance abuse counseling
- Code 390 Suspension, in-school: The student is removed from his or her regular classroom and assigned to an in-school suspension program.

Suspension:

- **Short term suspension** is the removal of a student from the school premises and regular classroom activities for 10 consecutive days or less.
- Long term suspension means the removal of a student from the school premises and regular classroom activities for more than 10 consecutive days, or for more than 10 days cumulatively for multiple disciplinary offenses in any school year.
 - A suspended student is restricted from entering the school buildings, or coming onto school grounds; and a suspended student may not participate in any school sponsored activities or functions during the suspension period. It is also recommended that parents restrict the activities of a student during the suspension period to reinforce the importance of the disciplinary consequence and to demonstrate cooperation between the school and family.
 - The Principal or his/her designee has the sole responsibility for determining who is suspended. The suspended student may not be permitted to return to school until a parental conference has been held.
- In school suspension At the discretion of the Principal, in-school suspension may also be imposed where a student is determined to have committed a suspendable offense. In-school suspension means the student is removed from regular classroom activities, but not from the school premises, for no more than 10 consecutive school days. Students will be subject to limitations on their movements and activities as determined by the Principal. In-school suspension for less than 10 days shall not be considered a short-term suspension. An in-school suspension of more than 10 days shall be deemed a long-term suspension.
 - For an in-school suspension, the principal shall inform the student of the disciplinary offense charged and the basis for the charge, and provide the student an opportunity to dispute the charges and explain the circumstances surrounding the alleged incident. If the principal determines that the student committed the disciplinary offense, the principal shall inform the student of the length of the student's in-school suspension, which shall not exceed 10 days, cumulatively or consecutively, in a school year.
 - On the same day as the in-school suspension decision, the principal shall make reasonable efforts to notify the parent orally of the disciplinary offense, the reasons for concluding that the student committed the infraction, and the length of the in-school suspension. The principal shall also invite the parent to a meeting to discuss the student's academic performance and behavior, strategies for student engagement, and possible responses to the behavior. Such a meeting shall be scheduled on the day of the suspension if possible, and if not, as soon thereafter as possible. If the principal is unable to reach the parent after making and documenting at least (2) attempts to do so, such attempts shall constitute reasonable efforts for purposes of orally informing the parent of the in-school suspension.
 - The principal shall send written notice to the student and parent about the in-school suspension, including the reason and the length of the in-school suspension, and inviting the parent to a meeting with the principal, if such meeting has not already occurred. The principal shall deliver such notice on the day of the suspension by hand-delivery, certified mail, first-class mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or by other method of delivery agreed to by the principal and the parent.

- Removal from Extracurricular Activities and Attendance at school sponsored events: The principal may remove a student from privileges, such as extracurricular activities and attendance at school-sponsored events, based on the student's misconduct. Such a removal is not subject to the procedures in M.G.L. c. 71, § 37H¾ or 603 CMR 53.00.
 - Opportunity for Academic Progress During Suspension/Expulsion
 - Any student receiving in-school suspension, short-term suspension, or long-term suspension shall have the opportunity to make up assignments, tests, papers, and other school work as needed to make academic progress during the period of removal from the classroom or school.
 - Any student who is expelled or suspended from school for more than 10 consecutive days shall have an opportunity to receive educational services that will enable the student to make academic progress toward meeting state and local requirements through the school-wide educational services plan.

Student Due Process Rights

In administering discipline, school officials will be careful to observe the right to due process under the law for each student. The nature of the violation determines the due process that school officials follow.

1. DUE PROCESS RIGHTS FOR STUDENTS CHARGED WITH POSSESSION OF A DANGEROUS WEAPON, POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE, ASSAULT ON SCHOOL STAFF AND/OR STUDENTS WHO HAVE BEEN CHARGED WITH OR CONVICTED OF A FELONY (M.G.L. c. 71, §37H and M.G.L. c. 71, §37H ½).

- Short Term Disciplinary Sanctions: Prior to the imposition of any disciplinary sanction that might
 result in a student's suspension from school for ten (10) consecutive school days or less, the
 student will be given oral notice of the offense with which he/she is charged and an opportunity
 to respond. In the event that the Principal or designee determines that the student will be
 suspended from school, the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) will be notified by telephone and in
 writing.
- Long Term Disciplinary Sanctions: Prior to the imposition of any disciplinary sanction that might result in the student's suspension from school for more than ten (10) consecutive school days or expulsion, the parents/guardians will be given written notice of a hearing at which they may be represented by an attorney at their expense and may examine and present witnesses and documentary evidence. Following this hearing, a written decision will be issued. The parent(s)/guardian(s) will have the right to appeal any decision imposing a long term suspension or expulsion from school to the Superintendent. Where the student is excluded in accordance with M.G.L. c. 71, §37H, the student shall have ten (10) days from the effective date of the exclusion to file a written appeal with the Superintendent of Schools. For exclusions imposed pursuant to M.G.L. c. 71, §37H ½, the student shall have five (5) days from the effective date of the exclusion to file a written appeal with the Superintendent. For exclusions imposed by the School Committee in accordance with M.G.L. c. 76, §17, the student shall have the right to file a written request for reconsideration by the committee within ten (10) days of the effective date of the exclusion. Pending the outcome of any such appeal, the disciplinary sanction imposed shall remain in effect. M.G.L. c. 76, §17, M.G.L. c. 71, §37H and M.G.L. c. 71, §37H ½.

2. DUE PROCESS RIGHTS FOR STUDENTS CHARGED WITH OTHER VIOLATIONS (M.G.L. c. 71, §37H ¾).

Notice and principal's meeting:

- For any suspension under this section, the principal or a designee shall provide notice of the charges and the reason for the suspension or expulsion to the parent(s)/guardian(s) in English and the primary language spoken in the student's home. The student shall receive written notice of the charges and the opportunity to meet with the principal or designee to discuss charges and reasons for the suspension and/or exclusion prior to suspension/exclusion taking effect.
- The principal or designee shall make reasonable efforts to notify the parent orally of the opportunity to attend the hearing. The meeting may take place without the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) so long as the principal has sent written notice and has documented at least two (2) attempts to contact the parent in the manner specified by the parent for emergency notification.
- The purpose of the principal's hearing is to hear and consider information regarding the alleged incident for which the student may be suspended, provide the student an opportunity to dispute the charges and explain the circumstances surrounding the alleged incident, determine if the student committed the disciplinary offense, and if so, the consequences for the infraction.
- The principal shall determine the extent of the rights to be afforded the student at a disciplinary hearing based on the anticipated consequences for the disciplinary offense.

Short-term Suspension

- The principal shall discuss the disciplinary offense, the basis for the charge, and any other pertinent information. The student also shall have an opportunity to present information, including mitigating facts, that the principal should consider in determining whether other remedies and consequences may be appropriate. The principal shall provide the parent, if present, an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the principal should consider in determining consequences for the student.
- Based on the available information, including mitigating circumstances, the principal shall determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense, and, if so, what alternative remedy or consequence will be imposed.
- When deciding the consequences for the student, the principal, headmaster, superintendent or person acting as a decision-maker shall consider ways to re-engage the student in the learning process; and shall not suspend or expel a student until alternative remedies have been employed and their use and results documented, following and in direct response to a specific incident or incidents, unless specific reasons are documented as to why such alternative remedies are unsuitable or counter-productive, and in cases where the student's continued presence in school would pose a specific, documentable concern about the infliction of serious bodily injury or other serious harm upon another person while in school. Alternative remedies may include, but shall not be limited to: (i) mediation; (ii) conflict resolution; (iii) restorative justice; and (iv) collaborative problem solving.

 The principal shall notify the student and parent of the determination and the reasons for it, and, if the student is suspended, the type and duration of suspension and the opportunity to make up assignments and such other school work as needed to make academic progress during the period of removal. The determination shall be in writing and may be in the form of an update to the original written notice.

Long Term Suspension

- In addition to the rights afforded a student in a short-term suspension hearing, the student shall also have the opportunity to review the student's record and the documents upon which the principal may rely in making a determination to suspend the student or not; the right to be represented by counsel or a lay person of the student's choice, at the student's/parent's expense; the right to produce witnesses on his or her behalf and to present the student's explanation of the alleged incident, but the student may not be compelled to do so; the right to cross-examine witnesses presented by the school district; the right to request that the hearing be recorded by the principal, and to receive a copy of the audio recording upon request. If the student or parent requests an audio recording, the principal shall inform all participants before the hearing that an audio record will be made and a copy will be provided to the student and parent upon request.
- If present, the Parent shall have an opportunity to discuss the student's conduct and offer information, including mitigating circumstances, that the principal should consider in determining consequences for the student.
- Based on the evidence, the principal shall determine whether the student committed the
 disciplinary offense, and, if so, after considering mitigating circumstances and alternatives to
 suspension, what alternative remedy or consequence will be imposed, in place of or in
 addition to a long-term suspension.
- When deciding the consequences for the student, the principal, headmaster, superintendent or person acting as a decision-maker shall consider ways to re-engage the student in the learning process; and shall not suspend or expel a student until alternative remedies have been employed and their use and results documented, following and in direct response to a specific incident or incidents, unless specific reasons are documented as to why such alternative remedies are unsuitable or counter-productive, and in cases where the student's continued presence in school would pose a specific, documentable concern about the infliction of serious bodily injury or other serious harm upon another person while in school. Alternative remedies may include, but shall not be limited to: (i) mediation; (ii) conflict resolution; (iii) restorative justice; and (iv) collaborative problem solving.
- The principal shall send the written determination to the student and parent by hand-delivery, certified mail, first-class mail, email to an address provided by the parent for school communications, or any other method of delivery agreed to by the principal and the parent.

If the student is suspended for more than 10 days for a single infraction or for more than 10 days cumulatively for multiple infractions in any school year, the notice will include written notification of the right to appeal to the Superintendent and the process for appealing in English and the primary language spoken in the student's home. No student will be suspended for greater than 90 days, beginning on the first day the student is removed from the building.

Emergency Removal

- The principal may remove a student from school temporarily when a student is charged with a disciplinary offense and the continued presence of the student poses a danger to persons or property, or materially and substantially disrupts the order of the school, and, in the principal's judgment, there is no alternative available to alleviate the danger or disruption. The principal shall immediately notify the superintendent in writing of the removal and the reason for it, and describe the danger presented by the student. The temporary removal shall not exceed two (2) school days following the day of the emergency removal.
- In the event of an emergency removal, the principal shall make immediate and reasonable efforts to orally notify the student and the student's parent of the emergency removal, the reason for the need for emergency removal. The principal shall provide written notice to the student and parent as provided above, and provide the student an opportunity for a hearing with the principal as provided above, and the parent an opportunity to attend the hearing, before the expiration of the two (2) school days, unless an extension of time for hearing is otherwise agreed to by the principal, student, and parent.
- The principal shall render a decision orally on the same day as the hearing, and in writing no later than the following school day, which meets the requirements as described above.
- In the event of an emergency removal from school, the principal will not release the student until adequate provisions have been made for the student's safety and transportation.

Superintendent's hearing

- The parent(s)/guardian(s) shall have 5 calendar days following the effective date of the suspension or expulsion to submit a written request for an appeal to the Superintendent but may be granted an extension of time of up to 7 calendar days. If the appeal is not timely filed, the superintendent may deny the appeal, or may allow the appeal in his or her discretion, for good cause.
- The Superintendent will hold a hearing with the student and the parent(s)/guardian(s) within 3 school days or the student's request for an appeal. The time may be extended up to 7 calendar days if requested by the parent(s)/guardian(s). The Superintendent's hearing may proceed without the parent(s)/guardian(s) if a good faith effort was made to include parent(s)/guardian(s). The superintendent shall be presumed to have made a good faith effort if he or she has made efforts to find a day and time for the hearing that would allow the parent and superintendent to participate. The superintendent shall send written notice to the parent of the date, time, and location of the hearing.
- At the hearing, the superintendent shall determine whether the student committed the disciplinary offense of which the student is accused, and if so, what the consequence shall be. Students shall have all of the rights afforded to students at the principal's hearing for long-term suspension. The Superintendent will issue a written decision within 5 calendar days of the hearing. If the superintendent determines that the student committed the disciplinary offense, the superintendent may impose the same or a lesser consequence than the principal, but shall not impose a suspension greater than that imposed by the principal's decision. The Superintendent's decision is the final decision of the district.

Discipline and Students with Disabilities

- All students are expected to meet the requirements for behavior as set forth in this handbook. In addition to those due process protections afforded to all students, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and related regulations require that additional provisions be made for students who have been found eligible for special education services or who the school district knows or has reason to know might be eligible for such services. Students who have been found to have a disability that impacts upon a major life activity, as defined under §504 of the Rehabilitation Act, are, generally, also entitled to increased procedural protections prior to imposing discipline that will result in the student's removal for more than ten (10) consecutive school days or where there is a pattern of short term removals exceeding ten (10) school days in a given year. The following additional requirements apply to the discipline of students with disabilities:
 - The IEP for every student eligible for special education or related services shall indicate whether the student can be expected to meet the regular discipline code of the school or whether the code should be modified to address the student's individual needs.
 - Students with disabilities may be excluded from their programs for up to ten (10) school days to the extent that such sanctions would be applied to all students. Before a student with a disability can be excluded from his/her program for more than ten (10) consecutive school days in a given school year or ten (10) cumulative school days in a given school year, building administrators, the parents/guardians and relevant members of the student's IEP or 504 team will meet to determine the relationship between the student's disability and behavior (Manifestation Determination). During disciplinary exclusions exceeding ten (10) school days in a single school year, the student shall have the right to receive services identified as necessary to provide him/her with a free appropriate public education during the period of exclusion.
 - o If building administrators, the parents/guardians and relevant members of the student's IEP or 504 Team determine that the student's conduct was not a manifestation of the student's disability, the school may discipline the student in accordance with the procedures and penalties applicable to all students but will continue to provide a free appropriate public education to those students with IEPs. The student's IEP team or 504 Team will identify the services necessary to provide a free appropriate public education during the period of exclusion, review any existing behavior intervention plan or where appropriate, conduct a functional behavioral assessment.
 - o If building administrators, the parents/guardians, and relevant members of the student's IEP or 504 Team determine that the conduct giving rise to disciplinary action was a manifestation of the student's disability, the student will not be subjected to further removal or exclusion from the student's current educational program based on that conduct (except for conduct involving weapons, drugs or resulting in serious bodily injury to others) until the IEP or 504 Team develops, and the parent/guardians consent to, a new placement, or unless the District obtains an order form a court or from the Bureau of Special Education Appeals (BSEA) authorizing a change in the student's placement. The Student's Team shall also review the student's IEP, and modify as appropriate, any existing behavioral intervention plan or arrange for a functional behavioral assessment.

o If a student with a disability possesses or uses illegal drugs, sells or solicits a controlled substance, possesses a weapon, or causes serious bodily injury to another on school grounds or at a school function, the District may place the student in an interim alternative educational placement (IAES) for up to forty-five (45) school days. A court or BSEA hearing officer may also order the placement of a student who presents a substantial likelihood of injury to self or others in an appropriate interim setting for up to forty-five (45) school days.

Student Athletes

It must be clearly understood that participation in athletic activities in the Malden Public Schools is a privilege- not a right- extended to those students who conform to the rules and regulations of eligibility and behavior set by the Massachusetts Interscholastic Athletic Association (M.I.A.A.) and the Malden Public Schools. A student must attend school on the day of an athletic activity in order to participate in that activity. The student athletes who exercise their privilege of participation in athletics are representing their school, community, family, and themselves, and therefore assume a greater responsibility for their behavior.

The student participating must represent the Malden Public Schools and the ideals that it stands for and must act in a manner which illustrates ideals of leadership, high moral character, loyalty, and academic "good standing". Good behavior outside of Malden High School is considered part of the student-athlete's responsibility. Infractions outside of school may lead to disciplinary action, including dismissal from a team.

Student athletes will be suspended or dismissed from their teams for violations of the MIAA Chemical Health Rule, which provides as follows:

"From the earliest fall practice date, to the conclusion of the academic year or final athletic event (whichever is latest), a student shall not, regardless of the quantity, use, consume, possess, buy/sell, or give away any beverage containing alcohol; any tobacco product; marijuana; steroids; or any controlled substance. This policy includes products such as "NA or near beer". It is not a violation for a student to be in possession of a defined drug specifically prescribed for the student's own use by his/her doctor." MIAA Rule 62.1.

Student athletes will also be expected to follow their medication administration plans as developed by the Nurse.

Infractions, Codes, Definitions / Criteria are directly from the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE)

100

Bus suspension The student was prohibited from riding the school bus.

Infraction: School Bus suspension 100		Definition/Criteria: Student is disrupting other students in the bus from and to school / home endangering the safety of the passengers assigned to the school bus
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
100	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Individual basis

Infraction: Alcohol 1000		Definition/Criteria
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1010 - Sale of alcohol	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Referral to MOA
1020 - Distribution of alcohol	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Referral to MOA
1030 - Drinking alcohol	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Referral to MOA
1040 - Possession of alcohol	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Referral to MOA
1050 - Suspicion of alcohol use	No	Investigation
1097 - Other alcohol	Yes	Suspension Hearing: Referral to MOA

1100

Arson (Setting a Fire) To unlawfully and intentionally damage, or attempt to damage, any school or personal property by fire or incendiary device. Firecrackers, fireworks, and trash can fires would be included in this category if they were contributing factors to a damaging fire.

Infraction: Arson		Definition/Criteria The unlawful or intentional damage to any school property by fire or incendiary device. Firecrackers, fireworks, and trash can fires would be included in this category if they were factors to a damaging fire.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1100 Saturday training with Malden Fire Department	Yes	Interventions: 1: Emergency suspension process 2: Police notified 3: Fire Department 4: DCF 5: Safety Evaluation

Infraction : Possession and/or use of a lighter, matches or other incendiary device		Definition/Criteria Possession and/or use of a lighter, matches or other incendiary device
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1100 Meeting with Admin	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Caregiver meeting 2: Confiscate Materials 3: Suspension (in-school/out of school)

Firearm Select from specific codes below. A firearm is any weapon which will, is designed to, or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; the frame or receiver of any such weapon; any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or any machine gun.

Infraction: Possess weapon knife or ot		Definition/Criteria An instrument composed of a sharp object that can be used to threaten, harm, injure or inflict pain. It is any sharp object.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1090	Yes	Interventions: 1: Emergency suspension process 2: Police notified 3: Safety Evaluation 4: Long Term Suspension

Infraction: Other \	Weapon 1090	Definition/Criteria Any object, device, or material that can cause harm, injury or damage.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
20 Knife 30 Other sharp objects	Yes	Interventions: 1: Emergency suspension process 2: Police notified 3: Safety Evaluation 4: Long Term Suspension

1200

Attendance Policy Violation of State, School District, or School Policy relating to attendance

Infraction: Forgery and/or Impersonating a parent/guardian		Definition/Criteria The action of producing a copy of a document, signature, banknote, or work of art.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1210 Embedded in curriculum	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1. Inform family 2. Another chance to get the signature Subsequent Offense (Above &) 3. Family meeting 4. Detention

5. Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 6. Research activity around forgery and/or impersonating with a presentation to teacher 7. Exclusion from the event			6. Research activity around forgery and/or impersonating with a presentation to teacher
---	--	--	---

Infraction: Skipping Class/Excessive Tarc		Definition/Criteria Cutting class: To skip a class or not go to a class when you should. Excessive Tardiness: Being late to class.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1220 Social emotional program	No	First Offense: 1: Teacher calls home 2: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &) 3: Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 4: Family meeting 5. Office detention 6. Research activity around class cutting/absences/tardies with a presentation to the teacher.

Infraction: Excessive	e Tardiness	Definition/Criteria Excessive Tardiness: Being late to class.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1230 Social emotional program	No	First Offense: 1: Teacher calls home 2: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &) 3: Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 4: Family meeting 5. Office detention 6. Research activity around class cutting/absences/tardies with a presentation to the teacher.

Infraction: Truancy		Definition/Criteria A school-aged child, not excused from attendance under the lawful and reasonable regulations of such a child's school, who willfully fails to attend school for more than 8 school days in a quarter.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1240 Handbook Sign-off Social emotional program	No	First Offense: 1: Calls home- Teachers should contact parents via phone each time the child misses class. Teacher must communicate with the student as to the purpose (fostering/ building a student/ teacher relationship). 2: Detention- given by the teacher for the second offense after the teacher engages with the student. Subsequent Offense: 3: Parent meeting 4: Office detention 5: Offense Causation determination meeting with guidance/social worker 6: Attendance officer

	7: Court involvement (CRA)
--	----------------------------

Infraction: Leaving school without permission		Definition/Criteria Failing to remain on school grounds, at any point after arrival, without authorization
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1297 Social emotional program	No	First Offense: 1: Calls home 2: Causation determination meeting with school social worker/school counselor 3: Parent meeting 4: Office detention Subsequence Offense: 5: Above and Police phone call

Disorderly Conduct (Disruptive Behavior) Any act that disrupts the orderly conduct of a school function; behavior which substantially disrupts the orderly learning environment.

Infraction: Being in	an unauthorized area	Definition/Criteria Any student who is in an area of the building without a pass or permission will be considered to be in an unauthorized area.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1500 Social emotional program	No	First Offense: 1: Warning for student and review expectations Subsequent Offense (Above &) 2: Calls home 3: Detention 4: Parent meeting 5. Office detention

Infraction: Disturbing a school assembly		Definition/Criteria Any student who provokes, incites, or otherwise causes a confrontation which risks harm to any other student or disrupts the normal educational process
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1500 Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: First Offense: 1: Removal of student from assembly 2: Call home 3: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &) 4: Office referral 5. Parent Meeting 6. Exclusion from event

Infraction : Demonstrations with disrupt the normal educational process		Definition/Criteria Any student who provokes, incites, or otherwise causes a confrontation which risks harm to any other student or disrupts the normal educational process
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1500 Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1: Removal of student from assembly 2: Call home 3: Detention
		Subsequent Offense (Above &) 4: Office referral 5. Parent Meeting 6. Exclusion from event

Drugs Excluding Alcohol and Tobacco (Illegal Drug Possession, Sale, Use/Under the Influence) Unlawful use, cultivation, manufacture, distribution, sale, solicitation, purchase, possession, transportation, or importation of any controlled drug (e.g., demerol, morphine) or narcotic substance.

Infraction: Use or Possession of alcohol, illegal drugs, and/or drug paraphernalia		Definition/Criteria The use or possession of alcohol, illegal drugs, or the misuse of prescription or over-the-counter drugs with negative consequences.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Possible Interventions Progressive Supports / Interventions
1600 Refer to MOA	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Calls home 2: Causation determination meeting with guidance 3: Re-education 4: Parent meeting 5: 51A 6: Office detention 7: ISS 8: Out of School Suspension 9: Restorative action

1800

Harassment, Nonsexual (Physical, Verbal, or Psychological) Repeatedly annoying or attacking a student or group of students or other personnel which creates an intimidating or hostile educational or work environment.

Infraction: Violation of hazing policy		Definition/Criteria Hazing is any activity expected of someone joining or participating in a group that humiliates, degrades, abuses, or endangers them, regardless of a person's willingness to participate.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1800	Yes	Interventions: 1: Parent meeting 2: ISS w/ re-education 3: Out of School Suspension 4: Police Report 5: 51A 6: Restorative action

Bullying Repeated negative behaviors intended to frighten or cause discomfort. These may include, but are not limited to verbal or written threats or physical harm.

Infraction: Violation of bullying policy		Definition/Criteria Bullying is defined as the repeated use by one or more students of a written, verbal, or electronic expression, or a physical act or gesture, or any combination thereof, directed at a victim that: • causes physical or emotional harm to the victim or damage to the victim's property; • places the victim in reasonable fear of harm to himself or of damage to his property; • creates a hostile environment at school for the victim; • infringes on the rights of the victim at school; or • materially and substantially disrupts the education process or the orderly operation of a school. Cyber-bullying is bullying through the use of technology or any electronic means. This includes both the creation of a web page or blog in which the creator impersonates another person or the distribution or posting of information online if these acts create any of the conditions listed above.	
	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions	
	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: mediation 2: detention, 3: behavior plans, 4: suspension (in or out-of-school), 5: expulsion	
1810 Training/Prevent/ Educate	 Empowering sother students Helping stude power imbalar Emphasizing of technologies; Enhancing stude difference. Initiatives will and Interventice 	and role plays to develop skills; tudents to take action by knowing what to do when they witness sengaged in acts of bullying or retaliation, including seeking adult assistance; ints understand the dynamics of bullying and cyberbullying, including the underlying ince; incyber-safety, including safe and appropriate use of electronic communication dents' skills for engaging in healthy relationships and respectful communications ents in a safe, supportive school environment that is respectful of diversity and also teach students about the student-related sections of the Bullying Prevention ion Plan. The Plan includes specific information about how and when the school or view the Plan with students.	

When above incidents are hate-related, administrators need to record code "Hate-Related" (see variable 1240)

Infraction: Wilfully pro	oviding false evidence	Definition/Criteria Knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during a grievance process, including but not limited to bullying/harassment reports and investigations
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1810	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Caregiver meeting 2: Detention Subsequent offense: 3: Suspension

1900

Harassment, Sexual (Unwelcome Sexual Conduct) Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, other physical or verbal conduct or communication of a sexual nature, including gender-based harassment that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work environment.

Examples: Leering; pinching; grabbing; suggestive comments, gestures, or jokes; or pressure to engage in sexual activity.

Infraction: Violation sexual harassment	on of harassment and policies	Definition/Criteria Violation of the policy that protects students and staff from discrimination based on certain personal characteristics, such as race, ethnicity, sex, age, sexual orientation and gender identity, among others. It also protects students and staff from harassment, including sexual harassment.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1900 Complete online training for anti bullying	Yes	Interventions: 1: Parent meeting 2: Title IX Investigation 3: ISS w/ re-education 4: Out of School Suspension 5: Police Report 6: Title IX Investigation 7: 51A 8: Restorative action

2100

Inappropriate Use of Medication (Prescription or over-the-counter) Use, possession, or distribution of any prescription or over-the-counter medication (e.g., aspirin, cough syrups, caffeine pills, nasal sprays) in violation of school policy. See also: 1600-Drugs

Infraction: Inappropriate Use of Medication		Definition/Criteria Use, possession, or distribution of any prescription or over-the-counter medication (e.g., aspirin, cough syrups, caffeine pills, nasal sprays) in violation of school policy
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2100 Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1: Removal of student from assembly 2: Call home 3: Check with school nurse
2110 Sale of medication	Yes	3: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &)
2120 Distribution of medication	Yes	4: Office referral 5. Parent Meeting 6. Suspension / Expulsion
2130 Use of medication in violation of school rules	Yes	
2140 Possession of medication in violation of school rules	Yes	
2140 Possession of medication in violation of school rules	Yes	

2200

Insubordination (Disobedience) Unwillingness to submit to authority, refusal to respond to a reasonable request, or other situations in which a student is disobedient.

Infraction: Insubordination		Definition/Criteria Unwillingness to submit to authority, refusal to respond to a reasonable request or other situations to which a student is disobedient
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2200 Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Teacher calls home 2:Teacher detention Subsequence offense: 3:Parent meeting 4: Office referral 5: In House or External Suspension

Infraction: Failure to correctly identify yourself to a staff member		Definition/Criteria Untruthful response when asked to identify self
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2200 Social emotional program	Yes	Interventions: 1: Teacher calls home 2: Teacher detention Subsequence offense: 3: office referral 4: Parent meeting 5: Detention 4: Parent Meeting

Obscene Behavior Language or actions, written, oral, physical, or electronic, in violation of community or school standards.

Infraction: Obscene, profane, or abusive language and gestures		Definition/Criteria Words or gestures that are vulgar, discriminatory or otherwise construed as socially offensive or harassing
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2400 Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense 1: Calls home 2:Detention 3:Restoration to those impacted
		Subsequent offense: 4:Parent meeting 5: Research activity around abusive language with a presentation to teacher(s)/friend(s) 6: In-school suspension 7: Out of school suspension

3100

Theft

Infraction: Theft		Definition/Criteria The action or crime of stealing.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions

3100 Handbook sign off Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1: Restoration to those impacted; item return 2: Calls home 3: Detention
		Subsequent Offense (Above &)
		4: Family meeting 5. Office detention 6. Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 7. Research activity around theft with a presentation to teacher 8. Police contact 9. In-House or external suspension

Robbery (Taking of Things by Force) The taking of, or attempting to take, anything of value that is owned by another person or organization under confrontational circumstances by force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the victim in fear. A key difference between robbery and theft is that the threat of physical harm or actual physical harm is involved in a robbery.

Infraction: Robbery		Definition/Criteria The action or crime of stealing. The taking of, or attempting to take, anything of value that is owned by another person or organization under confrontational circumstances by force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the victim in fear
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2600 Handbook sign off Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1: Restoration to those impacted; item return 2: Calls home 3: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &) 4: Family meeting 5. Office detention 6. Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 7. Research activity around theft with a presentation to teacher 8. Police contact 9. In-House or external suspension

2700

School Threat (Threat of Destruction or Harm) Any threat (verbal, written, or electronic) by a person to bomb or use other substances or devices for the purpose of exploding, burning, causing damage to a school building or school property, or to harm students or staff.

3200 Threat/Intimidation (Causing Fear of Harm) Physical, verbal, written, or electronic action which immediately creates fear of harm, without displaying a weapon and without subjecting the victim to actual physical attack.

Infraction : Endangering Safety and well-being of others		Definition/Criteria Conduct that compromises the safety, physical, mental health or welfare of self and/or others.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200	Yes	1: Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 2: Family meeting

	3: Safety evaluation- Crisis evaluation (in person at school/at home/at emergency
Social emotional	room)
program	4: Call 911 ambulance

Infraction: Throwing Object		Definition/Criteria Any object that is willfully released and used as a projectile.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200 Anger Management Training	Yes	Interventions: 1: Calls home 2: Detention 3: Parent meeting 4: Office detention 5: ISS 6: Out of School Suspension 7: Restorative action

Infraction: Verbal	or physical assault	Definition/Criteria Endangering the physical safety or mental health of another by the use of force or threats of force communicated by any means including written, spoken, or through the use of technology or any electronic means. This offense includes: threats of force (some overt act, expressed by any means, which reasonably places the victim in fear of imminent bodily injury), hazing [see Hazing], graffiti, and other threats communicated by any means: written, spoken, or through the use of technology or any electronic means.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200 Social Emotional Program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: First offense: 1: Office Referral 2:Parent Meeting 3: Detention up to and including suspension

Infraction: Physica	l Threat	Definition/Criteria Threatening an individual or group of individuals with a gesture(s) or body language.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200 Social Emotional Program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2 Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting 4: Detention up to suspension: 5: Police Report

Infraction: Verbal threat		Definition/Criteria Threatening an individual or group of individuals with spoken words or sounds.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2: Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting

Social Emotional Program	4: Detention up to suspension 5: Police Report
110814111	Sit shee report

Infraction: Writte	n threats	Definition/Criteria Threatening an individual or group of individuals in writing (e.g., letter, note, message, on chalkboard).
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200 Social Emotional Program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2: Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting 4: Detention up to suspension 5: Police Report

Infraction: Electronic threat		Definition/Criteria Threatening an individual or group of individuals by email, postings on Internet sites, or through other electronic mechanisms.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200 Complete Online Training on Cyber Bullying	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2: Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting 4: Detention up to suspension 5. Police Report

Infraction: Other Threat		Definition/Criteria The incident cannot be coded in one of the above categories but did involve a threat.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
2700 3200	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2: Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting 4: Detention up to suspension 5: Police Report

Tobacco (Possession or Use) Possession, use, distribution, or sale of tobacco products.

Infraction: Smoking and possession of any tobacco products on school grounds		Definition/Criteria The act of inhaling and exhaling Tobacco and being in possession of tobacco products.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3300 Complete online training on the effects of smoking	Yes /No Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: First offense 1: Office referral 2: Parent meeting

3: Detention	
--------------	--

Infraction: Use of and/or possession of any electronic smoking device/vaporizer and/or E-Liquid substance to be used with an electronic smoking device		Definition/Criteria The act of inhaling and exhaling from an electronic smoking device.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3300 Complete online training on the effects of smoking	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: First offense 1: Office referral 2: Parent meeting 3: Detention Second Offense 1: Parent meeting 2: Detention 2: Detention 2: Meeting with guidance/social worker (grade level specific) 3: Research activity around the dangers in the use of such products

Vandalism (Damage to School or Personal Property) Willful destruction or defacement of school or personal property. Violations can be specifically coded as: Willful destruction or defacement of school property. Willful destruction or defacement of personal property. The incident cannot be coded in one of the above categories but did involve vandalism.

Infraction: Vandalism		Definition/Criteria Destruction and/or willful damage to school property, or stealing, or attempting to steal school property
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense 1: Fix / clean up area of damage 2: Restoration to those impacted by vandalism/damage/ 3: Community Service to repay for the stolen and or damaged property
3510	Vandalism of school property	Subsequent Offense 4: Above & Suspension / Police report if restitution is not met 5: Research activity around vandalism with a presentation to teacher(s)/friend(s)
3520	Vandalism of personal property	3. Nescaren activity around varidansin with a presentation to teacher (s)/menu(s
3597	Other vandalism	

3600

Violation of School Rules (Disobeying School Policy) This category comprises misbehavior not captured elsewhere.

Infraction : Violation of acceptable use policy		Definition/Criteria Computer misuse; posting/retrieving/viewing unauthorized material on the Internet
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions

Complete online Cyber Bullying training	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: warning to student 2: caregiver notified 3: Monitored use of device
		Subsequent offense: 4: loss of computer privileges (week/month/semester/remainder of the year) 5: In-school suspension

Violation of School Rules (Disobeying School Policy) This category comprises misbehavior not captured elsewhere. Problem behaviors could include dress code violations, running in the halls, possession of contraband, cheating, lying to authorities, or falsifying records.

Infraction: Cheating		Definition/Criteria: Act dishonestly or unfairly in order to gain an advantage, especially in a game or examination. Avoid (something undesirable) by luck or skill.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3600 Embedded in the curriculum	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First offense: 1. Teacher calls home 2. Teacher detention 3. Assignment option/redo assignment; MHS zero on first offense 4. Exclusion from honors program (National Honor Society, etc.) Subsequent Offense: (Above &) 1. Research activity around cheating with a presentation to teacher 2. Office referral 3. Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 4. Assignment receives zero

Infraction: Plagiarism		Definition/Criteria The use of another person's thoughts, and ideas-whether taken from a paper, speech, article, film, music, image, in-print or online-intentionally or accidentally, whole or in part presenting it as your own work.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3600 Embedded in the curriculum	No	Interventions: First Offense 1: Teacher calls home 2: Teacher detention 3: Assignment option/ redo assignment Exclusion from honors programs (NHS) Subsequent Offense: (Above &) 4: Research activity on plagiarism with presentation to teacher 5: Office referral 6. Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 7. Assignment receives zero

Infraction: Willfully falsifying Information		Definition/Criteria Knowingly and willfully making any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or representations
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3600	Yes	First Offense:
Social emotional program	Depends on level of infraction	1: Another chance to get the signature Subsequent Offense (Above &) 2: Family meeting 3: Detention 4: Meeting with school social worker/school counselor 5: Research activity around forgery and/or impersonation with a presentation to a teacher. 6. Exclusion from the event.

Infraction: Failure to meet expectations regarding dress. code (pp —)		Definition/Criteria Students are not permitted to dress in any manner that interrupts the educational process or environment of the school. This may include clothing that prompts illicit or illegal activity, contains profanity, or does not comply with health or safety standards.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
3600 Conversation with Admin	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: First Offense: 1: Call home to bring a change of clothing 2: Student remains in office until appropriately dressed or end of the school day Subsequent Offense (Above &) 3: Repeated offenses see above with detention component and re-education 4: Family meeting 5. Office referrals

Other Offenses (e.g., Forgery, Extortion) Any significant incident resulting in disciplinary action not classified previously. Offenses could include bribery, fraud, embezzlement, forgery, resisting arrest, gambling, extortion, or dealing in stolen property.

Infraction: Extortion		Definition/Criteria The wrongful use of actual or threatened force, violence, or intimidation by an individual or a group to gain money or property from an individual.	
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions	
9000 Complete online training on anti-bullying	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Office referral 2: Restorative Practices 3: Parent meeting 4: Detention up to suspension 5: Police Report	

1700

Fighting (Mutual Altercation) Mutual participation in an incident involving physical violence, where there is no major injury.

Infraction: Fighting		Definition/Criteria Physical contact between two or more individuals with intent to do physical harm.
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
1700 Restorative Training	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Calls home 2: Causation determination meeting with guidance 3: Re-education 4: Parent meeting 5: Office detention 6: ISS 7: Out of School Suspension 8: Restorative action

2500 Physical Altercation, Minor (Pushing, Shoving) Confrontation, tussle, or physical aggression that does not result in injury

accomet south migary			
Infraction: Altercation		Definition/Criteria Physical contact between two or more individuals with intent to do physical harm.	
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions	
2500 Restorative Training	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Calls home 2: Causation determination meeting with guidance 3: Re-education 4: Parent meeting 5: Office detention 6: ISS 7: Out of School Suspension 8: Restorative action	

Infraction: Violation of nondiscrimination policy including slogans and symbols		Definition/Criteria Possession of discriminatory materials
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
Conversation with Admin	Yes Depends on level of infraction	Interventions: 1: Parent Meeting 2: Meeting with School social worker/school counselor 3: In School Suspension with re-education Subsequent Offense (Above &) 4: Suspension 5. Restorative Action 6. Involvement of Police 7. Title 9 report (each time)

Civil Right Violation

Must be investigated and reported to the Office for Civil Rights (OCR)

1 6 11		D C 111 10 11 1
Intraction	Violation of another's civil	Definition/Criteria
IIIIII action.	VIOIALION ON ANOLING 3 CIVII	

rights		The term "students' civil rights" refers to the right of students to be free from discrimination, including verbal or physical attacks based on race, color, sex, gender, gender identity, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, disability, homelessness or limited English language ability.
Training/Prevent/ Educate Suspendable?		Progressive Supports / Interventions
	Yes	Interventions: 1: Emergency suspension process 2: Fully investigation 3: Title 9 Report 4: Suspension determinate on number of offenses 5: Re-entry meeting with education requirement 6: Victim can present Civil Rights Charges

Infraction : Demonstrations with disrupt the normal educational process		Definition/Criteria Any student who provokes, incites, or otherwise causes a confrontation which risks harm to any other student or disrupts the normal educational process
Training/Prevent/ Educate	Suspendable?	Progressive Supports / Interventions
Social emotional program	Yes Depends on level of infraction	First Offense: 1: Removal of student from assembly 2: Call home 3: Detention Subsequent Offense (Above &) 4: Office referral 5. Parent Meeting 6. Exclusion from event

SEE SOMETHING, SAY SOMETHING

How to Report Bullying, Bias, Discrimination, Harassment, or Sexual Abuse/Assault



Malden Public Schools is committed to providing safe learning environments for all students. Whether you have experienced, been a witness to, or have information about a bullying or harassment incident, or any situation involving conduct you feel may have been motivated by bias or discrimination, report the incident by contacting a school administrator using the link below.

Staff members and administrators will work to investigate and prevent further issues of discrimination, harassment or violence. For any incidents where additional support is needed, school social workers and guidance counselors are available at each school.

SAY SOMETHING

Anonymously report an incident by scanning the code below or visiting: www.sandyhookpromise.org /say-something-tips/



DEFINITION OF TERMS



AGGRESSOR: A student or a member of a school staff who engages in bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation towards a student. Aggressors can be students or staff members.



BULLYING: The repeated use by one or more aggressors of a written, verbal or electronic expression or a physical act or gesture or any combination thereof, directed at a target.



TARGET: A student against whom bullying, cyberbullying, or retaliation is directed.



CYBERBULLYING: Bullying through the use of technology or any electronic devices such as telephones, cell phones, computers, and the Internet. This includes, but is not limited to, email, instant messages, text messages, and Internet postings.



HOSTILE ENVIRONMENT: A

situation in which bullying causes the school environment to be permeated with intimidation, ridicule, or insult that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to alter the conditions of the student's education.



staff Member: Those individuals working within the school, including, but not limited to educators, administrators, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, athletic coaches, advisors to extracurricular activities, or paraprofessionals.



RETALIATION: Any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment directed against a student who reports bullying, provides information during an investigation of bullying, or witnesses or has reliable information about bullying.



HARASSMENT: when the speech or actions are so severe, pervasive, or targeted at particular people that it hinders the student's ability to get an education, significantly harms their well-being, substantially interferes with their rights, or intimidates the student because of their identity.

PARENT/ LEGAL GUARDIAN FIELD TRIP AUTHORIZATION

Instructions: Please read carefully all directions and complete the forms and sign them.

Malden Public School Staff: Use one form per trip. Complete the School Portion of form. Duplicate one form per student. Send a copy home for parent and student signatures. During the field trip, the signed, original form must be carried by the lead chaperone and two to three other chaperones and a photocopy must be left on file in the school office. Students: Complete the "Student Agreement" section. Parent / legal guardian, if student is under 18 years of age; or student, if at least 18 years old: Complete the Authorization & Acknowledgement of Risks section. Sign all forms				
TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SCHOOL				
PARENTAL AUTHORIZATION FOR DAY FIELD	TRIPS			
School Name:	Student Name:			
Date(s) of Trip:	Destination:			
Purpose(s):				
List of Activities:				
Supervision: (Check one)				
Students will be directly supervised by adult ch	aperones on this trip at all times.			
Students will be directly supervised by adult ch Mode of Transportation: (Check all that apply.)	aperones on this trip with the following exceptions:			
\square Walking \square School bus \square MBTA \square Other $_$				
Students will leave from:(where) (time)	at			
Students will return to:(where) (time) Chaperone(s) in Charge:				
Chaperone/Student Ratio:(Pr	referred 10:1 for all grades or in accordance with venue guidelines)			

STUDENT AGREEMENT

While participating in this field trip, I understand I will be a representative of Malden Public School and my community. I understand that appropriate standards must be observed, and I will accept responsibility for maintaining good conduct and abide by school based rules and the Malden Public Schools' Code of Conduct.
Student Signature Date

TO BE COMPLETED BY PARENT/GUARDIAN (or student, if 18 or over)

PARENT/GUARDIAN AUTHORIZATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RISKS FOR MPS DAY TRIPS

I understand that me/my child's participation in this field trip is voluntary and may expose me/my child to some risk(s). I have read and understand the description of the field trip (on the front page of this form) and authorize myself/my child to participate in the planned components of the field trip. And in consideration of the Student being permitted to participate in the activity set forth above, I, on behalf of myself, my heirs, my agents, my representatives, and on behalf of the Student do forever RELEASE, acquit, discharge, and covenant to hold harmless, The City of Malden, the Malden School Committee, and their employees, servants and agents, from any growing out of, directly or indirectly, all known or unknown personal injuries or property damages or death, which I may now or hereafter have as the parent/guardian/ legal representative of the Student, as well as any actions, rights of action, causes of action, charges, and/or claims which the Student now has or may later acquire, either before or after the Student reaches the age of majority, resulting form, relating to, or in any way connected to, the Student's participation in the extracurricular activity set forth above.

MEDICAL AUTHORIZATION

I certify that I am/my child is in good physical and behavioral health and I have/my child has no special medical or physical conditions which would impede participation in this field trip. I agree to disclose to MPS any medications (including over- the-counter/herbal) and/or prescriptions which I/my child shall or should take at any time during the duration of the field trip. In the event of serious illness or injury to my child/ward, I expressly consent by my signature to the administration of emergency medical care, if in the opinion of attending medical personnel, such action is advisable.

Further, I authorize the chaperones listed to act on my behalf as parent/guardian of my child/ward while participating in the above described trip including the admittance to and release from a medical facility.

NO: My child <u>DOES NOT</u> require medication during this trip.
YES: My child <u>DOES</u> require medication during this authorized trip.
If you checked yes, please describe in the space below the type of medication and the required administration of this medication. If medication is taken on an as-needed basis, specify the symptoms or conditions when medication is to be taken and the time at which it may be given again. If necessary, attach an additional page.

SIGNATURES If the applicant is at least 18 years of age, the following statement must be read and signed by the student: I certify that I am at least 18 years of age, that I have read and that I understand the above Agreement, and that I accept and will be bound by its terms and conditions. Student Signature Date If the applicant is under 18 years of age, the following statement must be read and signed by the student's parent or I certify that I am the parent and legal guardian of the applicant, that I have read and that I understand the above Agreement, and that I accept and will be bound by its terms and conditions on my own behalf and on behalf of the student. I give permission for: (student) to participate in all aspects of this trip. Parent/Guardian Signature/s The student, if at least 18 years of age, or the parent/legal guardian must complete the information below: Print parent/guardian/s first and last name(s):______ Address: Telephone: (CELL, HOME, WORK) _____ Emergency Contact's First and Last Name (other than parent/guardians): ________

Name, Signature and Dates Approving participation in Field Trip

Emergency Contacts Telephone #s: Cell #1: _____ Cell #2: ____

Relationship to Student:

TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE AGREEMENT

Malden Public Schools Student Mobile Technology Duties and Obligations

In alignment with Malden Public Schools Acceptable Use Policy, students who are assigned portable technology devices, including Chromebooks, must adhere to provisions outlined in the policy and Malden Public Schools Mobile Technology Duties and Obligations notice below, and may be fiscally responsible for lost, stolen or damaged devices.

Ownership: The Malden Public Schools shall retain title to the equipment at all times, unless otherwise transferred. The student shall hold no security or ownership interest in the equipment or licenses to installed software. Equipment includes a Chromebook and power adapter, which is valued at approximately \$300.00 per Chromebook and \$40.00 per power adapter. Vandalism will result in, but not be limited to, the cancellation of system privileges and will require restitution for costs associated with hardware, software, and system restoration.

Content Filtering:

All sites used for instruction are evaluated by staff for appropriateness. Caregivers should note that when the Malden Public Schools Chromebooks are connected to a personal home network, they are not configured to filter the sites students may visit. Caregivers should discuss the importance of being safe, responsible, and respectful online.

Chromebook Functions:

The Chromebook is a multifunction device that allows for the following:

- Connect to any open or secured wireless network (if the password is known)
- Access the Internet (e.g. access online accounts, surf the Internet, etc.)
- Take pictures
- Record audio and video
- Use various instructional apps

Responsible Use:

Users are responsible for securing and safeguarding data stored on the Malden Public Schools technology. When using Malden Public Schools technology, this means that students should continue to use only approved Malden Public Schools and follow each tool's specific guidelines for using student accounts. If students choose to use digital tools or access online services that are not part of the Malden Public School's approved list, Malden Public Schools cannot be responsible for any data privacy or security concerns that may arise.

Student/Parent / Caregiver Agreement:

- We agree to use the device in accordance with *all* provisions of the Acceptable Use Policy and as it currently exists and as updated or modified.
- We agree to report any objectionable content to a teacher and/or administrator
- We understand that the Malden Public Schools has the ability to monitor the Malden

- Public School's device usage to ensure compliance with Malden Public Schools policies.
- We understand that, because of the Malden Public School's need to monitor Malden Public Schools devices, we have a limited expectation of data privacy while using the Malden Public Schools technology.
- We understand that students are to use only the Malden Public Schools approved digital tools in order to safeguard student data from unauthorized access.
- Furthermore, we are aware that the device may be randomly collected, inspected and searched.
- We agree that the device is to be used exclusively by the Malden Public Schools employees and the assigned student. Parent(s)/caregivers(s) may use the device for purposes of assisting their child with educational studies.
- We will obtain opt-out consent from participants before taking photos, recording audio or capturing video.

Ownership:

The equipment is a loan and remains the property of the Malden Public Schools.

The term of this loan is for the course of the school year or as otherwise designated by the school administrator.

Upon request of an administrator or teacher, we will return the device, case, and power cords.

Proper Care:

- To protect the device from damage, we will store this device in a protective case.
- We are responsible for the safe handling, storage, and security of this device. We agree to take appropriate precautions to prevent damage, loss, or theft.
- We will secure the device when not attended.
- We will not write, etch, scratch, mark or apply stickers to this device. Should student enrollment be terminated for any reason, the equipment must be returned within 4 calendar days.
- We will not alter any Malden Public Schools markings and stickers applied on the device.
- If the device is damaged we will return the device to the school immediately. We will not attempt to repair the device or contact any other computer repair service facility directly.

Liability:

In the event that the device is damaged due to misuse, accidental care or handling, neglect or vandalism, caregivers must pay for the replacement of the device regardless of the age of the device.

Parent / Caregiver:

- We understand that sustained and/or repeated damage may be subject to school based discipline including, but not limited to: community service, financial obligations, and technology restriction.
- If the device is lost, stolen or damaged, it is our responsibility to immediately notify the

school's media specialist, teacher, principal or assistant principal.

- If the device and power adaptor is not returned to the school system upon the teacher or school's request or when enrollment is terminated for any reason, we agree to pay the cost of a replacement device within 30 calendar days. Furthermore, we understand and accept that the Malden Public Schools may file a police report for stolen property should we fail to return or pay for the device and related items within 45 calendar days.
- We acknowledge that if we require financial assistance we can work with the school's Media Center Specialist and school principal to identify opportunities to repair the harm done to the device and community.

Return:

The Chromebooks and adapters will be returned to the school on the date and time determined by the school Principal

At Malden Public Schools, we use Google Workspace for Education, which are the accounts all students have that end in @maldenps.org. These accounts allow students to use Google Docs, Gmail etc, and are covered by the Google Workspace for Education Privacy agreement. As of March 25th, 2025, Google requires permission from parents or guardians to enable access to **Additional Services** not covered by the Google Workspace privacy policies.

We request permission to allow your child access to the following additional services: I permit Malden Public Schools to create/maintain a Google Workspace for Education account for my child and for Google to collect, use, and disclose information about my child only for the purposes described in the notice below.

Service	Description	Privacy Policy & Terms of Service
Chrome Web Store	We use the store to make available approved apps & extensions that our privacy policy has vetted.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Bookmarks	Access your bookmarks on any computer. Use lists to share them with friends. We use bookmarks as a way to help students organize important websites.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Chrome Sync	Synchronize your bookmarks, browser preferences, and browser theme on multiple computers. This service allows students' bookmarks to be accessible anytime they log into Chrome with their @maldenps.org Google account.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Earth	Explore the world, right in your browser. Certain classes use this to help students better understand the world around them.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Groups	We use Google Groups as forums for teachers and administrators to send messages to grade levels.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Maps	View maps and directions. Certain classes use this to help students better understand the world around them.	Terms

Service	Description	Privacy Policy & Terms of Service
Chrome Web Store	We use the store to make available approved apps & extensions that our privacy policy has vetted.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Bookmarks	Access your bookmarks on any computer. Use lists to share them with friends. We use bookmarks as a way to help students organize important websites.	<u>Terms</u>
Google My Maps	Create, share, and publish custom maps. Certain classes use this to help students better understand the world around them.	<u>Terms</u>
Google News	Comprehensive up-to-date news coverage, aggregated from sources all over the world.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Photos	Store and share photos with Google Photos.	<u>Terms</u>
Google Translate	Instantly translate words, phrases, and web pages between English and over 100 other languages. This service is used sparingly only as needed.	<u>Terms</u>
Search and Assistant	Use your account on Google Search and Google Assistant to see personal results, get better speech recognition, and access additional features. <u>Learn more</u>	<u>Terms</u>
YouTube	Watch, upload, and share videos, and participate in in-app chat. Currently, High-School is filtered for under 18 only . K-8 is filtered for under 13	<u>Terms</u>

The information below provides answers to common questions about what Google can and can't do with your child's personal information.

What personal information does Google collect?

The Additional Services we allow students to access with their Google Workspace for Education accounts may also collect the information as described in the <u>Google Privacy Policy</u>.

How does Google use this information?

In Google Additional Services, Google may use the information collected from all Additional Services to deliver, maintain, and improve our services; develop new services; provide personalized services; measure performance; communicate with schools or users; and protect Google, Google's users, and the public. See the <u>Google Privacy Policy</u> for more details.

Does Google use student personal information for users in K-12 schools to target advertising? Some additional services show ads; however, for users in primary and secondary (K12) schools, the ads will not be personalized ads, which means Google does not use information from your student's account or past activity to target ads. However, Google may show ads based on general factors like the student's search queries, the time of day, or the content of a page they're reading.

Will Google disclose my child's personal information?

Google will not share personal information with companies, organizations and individuals outside of Google except in the following cases:

With our school: Our school administrator (and resellers who manage your or your organization's Workspace account) will have access to your student's information. For example, they may be able to:

- View account information, activity and statistics;
- Change your student's account password;
- Suspend or terminate your student's account access;
- Access your student's account information in order to satisfy applicable law, regulation, legal process, or enforceable governmental request;

Restrict your student's ability to delete or edit their information or privacy settings.

With your consent: Google will share personal information outside of Google with parental consent. For external processing: Google will share personal information with Google's affiliates and other trusted third party providers to process it for us as Google instructs them and in compliance with our Google Privacy Policy, the Google Cloud Privacy Notice, and any other appropriate confidentiality and security measures.

For legal reasons: Google will share personal information outside of Google if they have a good-faith belief that access, use, preservation or disclosure of the information is reasonably necessary for legal reasons, including complying with enforceable governmental requests and protecting you and Google.

What if I have more questions or would like to read further?

If you want to learn more about how Google collects, uses, and discloses personal information to provide services to us, please review the <u>Google Workspace for Education Privacy Center</u> (at https://www.google.com/edu/trust/), the <u>Google Workspace for Education Privacy Notice</u>(at https://workspace.google.com/terms/education_privacy.html), and the <u>Google Privacy Policy</u> at https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/), and the <u>Google Cloud Privacy Notice</u> at (https://cloud.google.com/terms/cloud-privacy-notice).

Detach and Return to School

STUDENT TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY	
☐ Sign: Malden Public Schools Student Mobile Technology Duties and Obligations Student Acceptable Use Policy Please fill out the information below and return it to the school Principal in order for your student to receive a device and an adapter	
Signature will indicate that Caregivers read this document and acknowledge their duties and obligations.	
Print Student's Name	School/Grade
Print Parent/ Caregiver Name	
Parent/Caregiver SignatureDate	
PARENT/CAREGIVER AND STUDENT HANDBOOK	
☐ Sign: signature indicates that Caregivers/ Student over 18 years of age read this document and acknowledge their receipt and agreement of Malden Public Schools Handbook 2025-2026 Policy and Procedures	
Print Student's Name	School/Grade
Print Parent/ Caregiver Name	
Parent/Caregiver Signature Students over 18 years of age need to sign this docu	